TRI-CITY HEALTHCARE DISTRICT
AGENDA FOR A REGULAR MEETING

OF THE PROFESSIONAL AFFAIRS COMMITTEE

OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

October 13, 2016 — 12:00 p.m. — Assembly Room 1

Tri-City Medical Center, 4002 Vista Way, Oceanside, CA 92056

The Committee may make recommendations
to the Board on any of the items listed below,
unless the item is specifically labeled “Informational Only”

Page Time Requestor/
Agenda ltem Nos. Allotted | Presenter
Call To Order/Opening Remarks 2 min. Chair
Approval of Agenda 1-2 2 min. Chair
Public Comments 5 min. Standard
NOTE: During the Committee’s consideration of any Agenda item,
members of the public also have the right to address the Committee at that
time regarding that item.
Ratification of minutes of the September 2016 Meeting 3-8 2 min. Committee
New Business
Consideration and Possible Approval of Policies and Procedures 9-10 All
Patient Care Services
1. Cardiac Cath Lab Standardized Procedure 11-13
2. Catheter Clearance with Alteplase (Cathflo Activase) Procedure 14-16
3. CERNER Downtime Policy 17-49
4. Chest Tube Management Procedure 50-53
5. Differentiating Intrauterine Fetal Demises from Miscarriages 54-58
Procedure Tracked Changes
Differentiating Intrauterine Fetal Demises from Miscarriages 59-62
Procedure Clean Copy
6. Discharge from Outpatient Post-Anesthesia Nursing Service 63-64
Standardized Procedure
7. Haloperidol IV Administration Procedure 65-66
8. Hazardous Drugs Procedure 67-70
9. Local Anesthetic Prior to Intravenous Insertion Standardized 71-72
Procedure
10. Medical Equipment Brought into the Facility Policy Tracked 73-77
Changes
Medical Equipment Brought into the Facility Policy Clean Copy 78-81
11. Ordering 12 Lead ECG for Administration of Droperidol and /or 82-83
Discontinuing Drug Standardized Procedure
12. Pneumoccocal and Influenza Vaccine Screening and 84-86
Administration and Procedure
13. Sponge, Sharps and Instrument Counts prevention of Retained 87-93
Surgical Objects Tracked Changes
Sponge, Sharps and Instrument Counts prevention of Retained 94-98
Surgical Objects Clean Copy
14. Utilization of Staff, Staffing Patterns Policy 99-101
Unit Specific
Infection Control
1. Influx of Infectious Patients Epidemic Influenza OR Other 102-107
Respiratory Transmitted Disease IC 15.0
Medica! Staff
1. Disaster Privileges 108-115




1. Guideline for Care of the Extremely Low Birth Weight Infant
(ELBW) and Very Low Birth weight Infant (VLBW)
Non-Emergent Neonatal Endotracheal Intubation

w N

Palliative Care of the Neonates at the End of Life Clean Copy
Peripheral Arterial Line Insertion, Maintenance and Removal of
Staffing Ratios for Social services in the NICU

Standards of Care- NICU 2016

Standards of Care NICU

Visitation in the NICU Tracked Changes

Visitation in the NICU Clean Copy

PN~

Women’s and Newborn Services
1. Newborn Sepsis Care Guidelines

Formulary Requests
1. Corticosteroid- Epidural Administration by IR
2. Gadavist
3. Formulary Line ltem Additions/Deletions
e Capsaicin Topical Cream

Palliative Care of the Neonates at the End of Life Tracked Changes

116-121

122-124
125-128
129-131
132-134
135-136
137-146
147-154
155-157
158-159

160-162

163
164-165
166

e Ticagrelor 60 mg tablets
e Albuterol oral solution
e Potassium chloride 40meq/30 mi cup
e Vitamin K 5mg
6. Review and Discussion of CLINICAL Contracts- NO Contracts To Review
(Discussion/ Possible Action)
7. Motion to go into Closed Session 2 min. Committee
8. CLOSED SESSION 30 min. | Chair
a. Reports of the Hospital Medical Audit and/or Quality Assurance
Committee (Health & Safety Code Section 32155)
b. Conference with Legal Counsel — Significant exposure to litigation
(Government Code Section 54956.9(b))
9. Reports from the Committee Chairperson of any Action Taken in 10 min. | Chair
Closed Session (Government Code, Section 54957.1)
10. Comments from Members of the Committee 5min. | Committee
11. The next meeting of the Professional Affairs Committee of the Board is on 1 min Chair
November 10, 2016.
12. Adjournment 1 min Chair




‘olqnd
8y} JO siaqLualW Wol} sjuswwod buipliebail

‘way ay)
JO UOBISPISUOD S 880D
alojaq onqnd sy} 0}
1saJajul Jo wayl Aue uo olgnd
8y} Jo siaquisi Ag sjusLWIWO) €

[IBYSHIN 10308l ydeibelsed ay} peal jj|oydi 1030aliq
‘opJejuo) "iq Aq pspuooss
pue ejiuul{ J03081Q Aq apew sem "SUOI}eolipowl JO SUOHIppEe OU 919M 313U}
[IeYOHN Jo3oaliq epuabe ay} anoidde o} uonop pue epuabe ay} pamainal sapIwwod ay | epuaby jo jenouddy ‘2
'} wooy Alqusssy ul Nd S0:Z) 1e
[ISYININ 10308110 1apio o} Bupesw ay} pa||ed ||BYINN JojoalIg 8plQ ol || eD |

a|qisuodsay
(s)uosiad

suonepuaILIOIdY
juonay dn-mojjo4

uoissnasiq

oido]

"UBLLIOAA OO i PUE BJiUUL JO}oalI] :JUdSqy SIaquIay

"ZUSH ualey|

pue BLaNS) BIOUIEd ‘BINWNO BUSMOY ‘Bijep esi ‘ddo] Ayjey ‘|osjuol uoiosju) pue Ayend 119 ‘eoueldwo) Aiojeinbay Joj Jojoaliq ‘uosiesid
iwer ‘aoueldwol) pue Aiojejnbay Joj Jojoaiq IS ‘Yybneueaed elolepy ‘josuno’) jelausas) ‘Is(jeniy SljeleN pue uopeg oy :juasald siayj0

19910 @oueidwo) JaIyD

‘meyg-pleusag sjfiay) pue ‘dA ‘IS /3ND ‘ZNyog uoteys ‘dA 'ax3 /00D ‘Asjuon endey ‘03D ‘Uieig A8)S Juadsald siaqualy Bunop-uoN

"UOSUYO[ "I pUe ‘e\ duao "I ‘OpJejuo) snosepy ‘1g ‘Yoo|ieyss AueT Jopaad ‘(J1eyD) [[eyouy eineT Jopaliq  Judsald SIoquIsiy

910¢ ‘g Jaquiaydag

sajnulpy uoissag uadQ

Bunes|y e9RIWIWIOD SlIBYY |eUOISSd)0Id

lajuag |evdlpay Ayo-1L

Ldvdd




918060 SeINUIN OVd

elens eled

‘lenoidde pieog

Jo} psemuo} Buinow saio1jod au)
anoldde o} uonjow ay} papuooas
uosuyor "Iq pue parow
opieluon 1q ‘panoidde aiem
salnpadsold pue saioljod SaoIAI8S

ale) jusijed ay| :NOILOV

:plodal
|[EQIpaW By} Ul JUBWNOOoP 0} pazioyine

ale oym ajdoad jo 3s1| 9y} ul sebueyd sawog
‘ainpaoold sixAd s}oaye jey} sayoib
20elSlUI YINYID SWos Jo uojusw e osje
sem aJjay) ‘juswpedaq uonensibey ay; Aq
pajelauab Buiaqg si N4 8y) Jey} psjou sem }

"9OIASP Al B4}

wouy Bnip [enpisal ay} ajelidse o} Bundwene
01 Joud palajsiuiupe 8q pjnoys sjoplhue

By} Jey) seje)ls 1l Se p Uoj}oas 0} | UOKOSS
SAOW 0] 8peW SEM UOljepuswwodal

'sasodind aAoaya-1s0o 1o Auedwod

a|Buis e Aq psjpuey buiag ate aysem jo adA}
y1og ey} pajou usasnpO UIASY ‘s|eusjew
a)sem pal pue a)sem Adelayjowayd

8y} UO apeLW UonedLIBID B SBM 19y |

Ad1104 plooay |edlpsiy
8y} Ul uoneIBWNI0(q b

uonepodsuel] puy
"sjbay uonensiuiwpy
-ald Adelayjowayn ‘¢

ainpasold
uoneseAelxgy
Adelsayjowsy) 2

suaul jo buypueH
pue ‘sjjdg ‘ainsodx3
Adesayjowayn |
:sai1npadoid
pue saldljod aie) Juaied

$S2INpPadoId pue saIl|0d
10 jenolddyy ajqissod
pue uonelapisuo) ‘e

ssauisng MaN G

ZUsH uauey|

‘'gL0Z 1snBny woJ} senuiLl ay}
anoidde 0} uojjow ay} papuooas
opJejuo) "I pue panow

BJluul{ Jojoaliq "palnel salnulp

‘Bunesw
910z ‘1 1 1snbBny woly seynuiw ay} anoidde
0} UOIjoW B 10} paJ|ed ||I2Yo)y 10308lig

‘9102 Isnbny
JO sajnuIW Jo uoneouney v

a|qisuodsay
(s)uosiagd

SUOIJEPUBWIWOIY
juondy dn-mojjo4

uoissnasiqg

aido)




918060 s9nUIN Ovd

el1ano eoujed

elieng) eoujed

‘lenoidde pieog

Jo} premio} Buinow saioijod ayy
anoidde 03 uoljow ay) papuoosss
uosuyop "Iq pue panow
)00j|eyos Joyaliq ‘paroidde
alam sainpaooid pue saloljod
[05Ju0D uoljoaU] 3Y L :NOILOV

‘lenoidde pieogq

10} pyemuoy Buinow saioljod ay)
anoidde 0} uonow ayj pepuodas
opJejuo) "I pue parow
300]||eYyog Jojoaliq “pancidde
alam sainpasoid pue saoljod
aAljelsiuilpY 3yl :NOLLOV

‘lenuew [0,U0D) UOIO8U|

By} 0} Jajal pinoys Jels ‘uolewlojul
[euonippe 10} Jey} pajou Sem )| "Jaulejuod
sdieys Jo Beq tejnbai ‘Beq pal eq Il Joyieym
—o06 0] pasoddns s| )l a19ym pue sjsem

Jo @dA} Jeym sajeoiput Apeslo ge abed uo
Heyd 8y} Jey} papuswwod e|iuul J030aliq

Juawaaiby uonelyy jedluld ay) ul

punoj osje aq ued uolewIoul pajejal JayiQ
‘suonelye jealuls uapnis buiysijgelse

1o} Aoua)sisuod ainsua |m Aojjod siy |

‘Buiise)} Bzuanjjul 10} s}Nsal
ojeInooe ulelqo o} Alessaoau s| )l 9oUls
ainpeooud siy} 1o} pasn Buiaq si gems ay]

‘uedisAyd juapisay

se palloads ag pjnoys juspisay e
‘paAowal
ag pinoys sjsideiay} [euoiealdal
Jyoeads jjeuonednoasoyesisAyd
pasuaoi] Ul paAoWwal

aq p|noys ,pasuadl|, widyay] e
"BuIDIpaN Jo JojooQ

palLLd) 8q pPINOYS J0Jo0p [EDIPSIN e

LOL D] Juswabeuep ai3sepy L
JoJ3uon uonadu|
ayivadg yun

6¥Z uojjeonp3
uonjel0Y [B2IUD JUSPNIS |

sainpesoid
pue sald1jod dAeSIUIPY

alnpasold bunse |
gemg |eabuliyedoseN
ezuanjyu| ‘g

a|qisuodsay
(s)uosiad

sSUoniepuUaWILIODDY
Juonady dn-mojjo4

uoissnasiqg

oidoj




14

918060 SSINUIN Ovd

elsng) eujed

eliano eioujed

elsng elyed

"1 pue panow }20jeyss
Jojoalg ‘panroidde aiam
sainpaooid pue saojjod J1sus)

uoisnjuj juajedinQ syl :NOILOV

‘lenoidde pieog 1o} piemio)
Buinow Aoyjod sy} snoidde oy
uoIjoW 8y} PapuU0I8s }O0|[eyoS
10)oali(g pue paaouw opJeIo)
‘1 ‘panoidde sem ainpadosd
ABojoouQ 8yl :NOILOV

‘lenocidde pleog

1o} piemuoy panowl o) panosdde
atom saiiod NOIN 2y} pue
papuooas ejiuul{ 10}0ali(] ‘paAowW
)00]jeyoS 1030a1iQ ‘NOILLOV

uo Jojoe) buipiosp 8y} uayo si }salajul }saq

s Juaijed ay) ‘awes ay) st a1ed jo Alenb ay}
‘sdwnd uoisnjul jualayip sesn juanedino
pue Jusiedul 8y} s|iym payLiejo Jayuny sem}

"Jun ABojoouo ayy

apisino Adelayjowsayo Buussiuiwpe usym
asinu Adelsylowayo e jo Ajjiqisuodsal

ay} sauljino Aes)o Aoljod siy) “jsioewseyd
Jo0oj} @y} yum uonoun(uod u) suop

s1 syun ay} ul uonjensiuiwpe Adessyidowsy)

‘Aa110d SIY} UO UOISSNISIP OU SEM 319y ]

‘abueyd ay} ayew o0} Jou paplosp

SEM }I ‘UOISSNOSIp BWOS JaYy "sjuejul

0] sia)eo Ajjeoyoads Aojjod siyy aouis Asljod
ajoym ayj Jo} Juejul, ol Juaned, sbueyo
0] paau e S| aJay} j UOISSNISIP B Sem 319y |

*£o110d SIY} UO UOISSNOSIP OU SEM 918y |
*Jaonpsuel} ay} Bunelqles 1o}

ssao0.d ay} Ajlie[d 0} papasu am asnedsaq
Ma3IABI Jayuny 10} pajind sem Aatjod siy |

Aatjod (dIv)
dwind uoisnju] Auoje|nguuy "L
19juan uoisnjuj JuanedinQ

alnpaosold uonessiuiupy
Adessyjowsyn L
ABojosup

JO uolenuiuods|g pue
‘Juswabeuepy ‘uoipuasu|
‘sieayle) [edllquin v

JOBJUOD UINS O} UNS '€

Jo4 juswieal) ‘suonesyyul
snousAeiu| jesjaydusd 'z

JO jenowiay
pue soueuS)UIB]\ ‘UOILSSU|
aur [euapy [esayduad |
aJen) aAISUBlU| [e}RUOBN

a|qisuodsay
(s)uosiad

SuUonepuswWIodaY
juonody dn-mojjo4

uoissnasiq

aido]




918060 seInuIN Ovd

elang eiolled

eliano eouled

‘lenosdde pieog 10j pJemioy
Buinow saioljod ay} sanoidde

0} UONOW 3y} papuoodss e|luui4
10108l pue paAow OpJejuo)
‘1 "peAroidde aiam sainpadsolid
pue saioijod Sa2IAI9S UOGMaN
pue s,uUsWop 841 :NOILOV

‘lenosdde

pJeog Joj pJsemioy Buirow

Aonjod siy} anoidde oy uonjow ayy
pPapuooas X20j|eyos J0joalJ pue
panow ey iq ‘panoidde sem
foljod Aoeureyd ay| :NOILOV

‘lencidde pieog 10} plemio}
Buinow saioljod ay) anoidde
0} UOHOW 3y} Papu0Ias OPIBJUOY)

‘Juswjerdeq seoIneS

UIOgMaU pue S,USWOAA 3y} J0f Jaquuinu
pioDal |edipalw pue jaquinu jjiwpe-aid Jo
ablaw ayj UO UOISSNISIP jolIg B Sem a1ay |

‘foijod SIy} UO UOISSNISIP OU SEM 319y |

"S90IAIBS 81e) Judljed O} jenuepy Aoewleyd

ay} wouj panow bBulag st Aojjod siy |

‘uonajep e si Aajjod sy

‘uonejap e si Aaljod sy

‘uonsep e st Aoljod siy

‘uonajap e si Aoyjod siy |

‘pasn aq 0} buiob s1 dwind jo adA} ysiym

Aoljo4 uonensiboy
uolssiwpy SNM ¢
(lpwaaD) suoysoidoulq |
CERTPVETS
UJOGM3N pue S,USWOpA

uoneisedald
pue Buissasoid
‘buiquosald Adessyjowayn ')
Aoeuwnreyd

aJsep
Adesayjoway) jo |esodsiq 9

uoleledald
pue Bunpn Adesayjowayn g

uopeseAs)x3
Aediayjoway) ‘¢

syuaby onnadelayjowayd

YHM pajeullwejuor) suaui

jo Buipuey pue s||ids
ainsodx3 Adelayjowayn ‘¢

Jajuan uoisnuj
a1npadold uonelsiuiwpy
Adesayowayn 7

a|qisuodsay
(s)uosiagd

SUOIEpPUAWWOIY
Juonay dn-mojjo

uoissnasiqg

oido|




918060 sSiNUIN DVd

lIoYoNN 10308110

‘INd S1:Z }e pawinofpe Bunes|y

uswiuinolpy "L 1

lloUOUN Jojoand

"SJUSWIWIOD ON

aa)IWWo) 8y}
1O SIaquIS|\ WOy sjuswwo) ‘0l

lIoYoUN Jojoaid

‘u9e] SUONO. OU 3IaM aJay |

uoIssag
paso|D uj usye] uondy Auy
Jo uosiadiiey) ayy jo spoday ‘6

'Nd 2¢¢-¢
[IBYSHN Joyoelld Je uoissag uadQ 0} uinjal sapIwWwo) ay| uoissag uadp oy uIn}dy ‘g
‘Nd 0§:21L e uoissas pasojo
ojul o6 0] panoidde Ajsnowiueun
SEM ]I pUB papuUO09as Yoo|eyos "uoISSag paso|) ol
[IoYSHW 1030811 Jojaliq ‘parow uosuyor “ig 0B 0} uonowi e 1o} payse [|9YdM\ Jojoalld uolssag paso|D /L
[IBUDHIN Joyo8IIg "use} uonoe ON :NOILDOVY | “uluow S|y} Jo} pomalAal 819M SJOBIJUOD ON sjoeIUO) [BOIUID 9
a|qisuodsay suofjepuawwioddy
(s)uosiad juonoy dn-mojjo4 uoissnasiqg oido|




- N7 TriCity Medical Center

PROFESSIONAL AFFAIRS COMMITTEE
October 13", 2016
CONTACT: Sharon Schultz, CNE

Policies and Procedures | Reason | Recommendations
Patient Care Services Policies & Procedures
1. Cardiac Cath Lab Standardized 2 year review,
Procedure practice change )
2. Catheter Clearance with Alteplase 3 year review, N
(Cathflo Activase) Procedure practice change

3 year review,
practice change
3 year review,
practice change

3. Cerner Downtime Policy

4. Chest Tube Management Procedure

5. Differentiating Intrauterine Fetal Demises
from Miscarriages Procedure Tracked 3 year review,
Differentiating Intrauterine Fetal Demises | practice change
from Miscarriages Procedure Clean

6. Discharge from Outpatient Post-
Anesthesia Nursing Service Standardized

2 year review,
practice change

Procedure
7. Haloperidol IV Administration 2 year review,
Standardized Procedure practice change

3 year review,

8. Hazardous Drugs Procedure practice change

9. Local Anesthetic Prior to Intravenous

Insertion Standardized Procedure yS
10.Medical Equipment Brought into the

Facility Policy Tracked 3 year review,

Medical Equipment Brought into the practice change

Facility Policy Clean

11.0Ordering 12 Lead ECG for Administration
of Droperidol and-or Discontinuing Drug
Standardized Procedure

12.Pneumoccocal and Influenza Vaccine
Screening and Adminstration
Standardized Procedure

13.Sponge, Sharps and Instrument Counts
Prevention of Retained Surgical Objects
Tracked
Sponge, Sharps and Instrument Counts
Prevention of Retained Surgical Objects

2 year review,
practice change

2 year review,
practice change

practice change

Clean
14. Utilization of Staff, Staffing Patterns 3 year review,
Policy practice change
Unit Specific
Infection Control
" Infenza or Oiher Rommtany e e
Transmitted Disease IC 15.0 P 9




PROFESSIONAL AFFAIRS COMMITTEE
October 13", 2016
CONTACT: Sharon Schultz, CNE

Policies and Procedures | Reason Recommendations
Medical Staff
1. Disaster Privileges 3 year review,
practice change
NICU
1. Guideline for Care of the Extremely Low
Birth Weight Infant (ELBW) and Very Low DELETE
Birth Weight Infant (VLBW)
2. Non-Emergent Neonatal Endotracheal DELETE
Intubation
3. Palliative Care Of the Neonates at the
End of Life Tracked 2 year review,
Palliative Care Of the Neonates at the practice change
End of Life Clean
4. Peripheral Arterial Line Insertion, 2 year review,
Maintenance and Removal of practice change
5. Staffing Ratios for Social Services in the 2 year review,
NICU practice change
6. Standards of Care - NICU 2016 2 year review,
practice change
7. Standards of Care NICU DELETE
8. Visitation in the NICU Tracked 2 year review,

Visitation in the NICU Clean

practice change

Women and Newborn Services

1.

Newborn Sepsis Care Guidelines

NEW

Formulary Requests

1.

Corticosteroid — Epidural Administration
by IR

practice change

. Gadavist

practice change

2
3.

Formulary Line Item Additions/Deletions
¢ Capsaicin topical cream

Ticagrelor 60 mg tablets

Albuterol oral solution

Potassium chloride 40meq/30mL cup
Vitamin K § mg

practice change

(O




‘C‘? Tri-City Medical Center

Oceanside, California
| PATIENT CARE SERVICESSTANDARDIZED RPROCEDURES MANUAL
STANDARDIZED PROCEDURE: CARDIAC CATH LAB PROCEDURES

l. POLICY:
A. Function: Provide care for patients who will be receiving services through the Cardiac Cath Lab.
B. Circumstances:
1. Setting: Tri-City Medical Center (TCMC) Cath Lab
2. Supervision: None required.
3. Patient contraindications: None.
C. Expected Outcomes:
1. To outline personnel and duties involved in procedures in the Cath Lab.
2. To delineate steps in elective or emergent procedure in the Cath Lab.
3. To assure that any patient undergoing a cardiac procedure at TCMC will be assessed for
pre procedure risk and will be directed to the appropriate level of care.
1. PROCEDURE:
A. CARDIAC CATHERIZATION
1. The RN shall order the following if previous results from greater than 90 days or no
results available :
a. Obtain previous lab and history and physical if available.

b. Cardiology:
| i Perform EKG. Retrieve and print any previous EKG, if available.

C. Labs:
i. CBC
. Complete Metabolic Panel Z(Chem 12)
ii. PT/PTT/INR
iv. Cardiac Troponin (Troponin [)
V. CKMB
vi. Labs may be drawn prior to procedure
d. Nurses Order
i. Start 22, 20 or 18 gauge IV
ii. Intravenous (IV) Normal Saline (NS) at 20 mL/hr
iii. Point of care (POC) blood glucose if patient diabetic

e. Diet:

i. Ensure NPO prior to procedure except for small amounts of water to take
oral medications.
B. PERCUTANEOUS TRANSLUMINAL CORONARY ANGIOPLASTY:

a. The RN shall order the following if previous results from greater than 90 days or
no results available:
i. Obtain previous lab and history and physical if available.

b. Cardiology:
i Perform EKG, retrieve and print previous EKG if available

C. Labs:
i CBC
ii. Complete Metabolic Panel #(Chem 12)
iii. PT/PTT/INR
iv. Cardiac Troponin (Troponin I)
Clinical Nursing A ) ‘ Medical Professional
Degargment Policies & | Executive g'a‘:';zr; of F"rl:laer::a:xﬁa:sd :_.:‘rt:égzcg’;'::g; Executive Affairs g_oar;l of
gview Procedures Council ay P Committee | Committee {opiors
NEW 3/13; . . 10/13,
a4 3/13;4/14 | 3/13;05/14 02/16 5/13, 03/16 09/13, 07/16 0916 10113

11




Standardized Procedure Manual
Standardized Procedure: Cardiac Cath Lab

Page 2 of 3
V. CKMB
vi. Labs may be drawn prior to procedure
d. Nurses Order
i Start 22, 20 or 18 gauge IV
ii. IV NS at 20 mL/hr

iii. POC blood glucose if patient diabetic
e. Diet:
i. Ensure NPO prior to procedure except for small amounts of water to take
oral medications.
C. ELECTIVE CARDIOVERSION:
1. The RN shall order the following if previous results from greater than 90 days or no
results available:
a. Obtain previous lab & history and physical if available.
b. Cardiology:
i. Perform EKG. Retrieve and print any previous EKG, if available
C. Labs:
i. INR, complete metabolic panel (Chem 12¢7), CBC
ii. Labs may be drawn prior to procedure
d. Nurses Order
i. Start 22, 20 or 18 gauge IV
il IV NS at 20 mL/hr
iii. POC blood glucose if patient diabetic
e. Diet:
i. Ensure NPO prior to procedure except for small amounts of water to take
oral medications.
D. PERICARDIOCENTESIS:
1. The RN shall order the following if previous results from greater than 90 days or no
results available :
a. Obtain previous lab and history and physical if available.
b. Cardiology:
i Perform EKG. Retrieve and print any previous EKG, if available

c. Labs:

i. CBC

ii. Complete Metabolic Panel Z(Chem 12)

iii. PT/PTT/INR

iv. Labs may be drawn prior to procedure
d. Nurses Order

i. Start 22, 20 or 18 gauge IV

ii. IV NS at 20 mL/hr

ii. POC blood glucose if patient diabetic

e. Diet:

i Ensure NPO prior to procedure except for small amounts of water to take
oral medications.
E. IMPLANTABLE CARDIOVERTER DEFIBRILLATOR IMPLANT/CHANGE;
1. The RN shall order the following if needed:

a. Obtain previous lab and history and physical if available.

b. Cardiology:
i Perform EKG. Retrieve and print any previous EKG, if available.

c. Labs:
i. CBC
ii. Complete Mmetabolic Ppanel (Chem 12)
iii. INR/ PT/ PTT
iv. BNP
V. Labs may be drawn prior to procedure

12



Standardized Procedure Manual
Standardized Procedure: Cardiac Cath Lab

Page 3 0of 3

d. Nurses Order
i. Start 22, 20 or 18 gauge IV
iiii. NS at 20 mi/hr

e. Diet:
i. NPO after midnight except for small amounts of water to take oral

medications.
E-F. PERMANENT PACEMAKER INSERTION/CHANGE:
1. The RN shall order the following if previous results from greater than 90 days or no
results available :
a. Obtain previous lab and history and physical if available.

b. Cardiology:
i Perform EKG. Retrieve and print any previous EKG, if available.

C. Labs:
i. CBC
i. Complete Mmetabolic Ppanel #(eChem 12)
ii. PT/PTT/INR
iv. Labs may be drawn prior to procedure
d. Nurses Order
i. Start 22, 20 or 18 gauge IV
i IV NS at 20 mL/hr
ii. POC blood glucose if patient diabetic
e. Diet:

i. Ensure NPO prior to procedure except for small amounts of water to take
oral medications.
E-G. IMPLANTABLE LOOP DEVICE IMPLANT/EXPLANT:
1. The RN shall order the following if previous results from greater than 90 days or no

results available :

a. Obtain previous lab and history and physical if available.

b. Cardiology:
i Perform EKG. Retrieve and print any previous EKG, if available.

C. Labs:
i. CBC
ii. Complete Mmetabolic Ppanel-#(eChem 12)
il INR
iv. Labs may be drawn prior to procedure
d. Nurses Order
i. Start 22, 20 or 18 gauge IV
ii. IV NS at 20 mL/hr
ii. POC blood glucose if patient diabetic

e. Diet:
i. Ensure NPO prior to procedure except for small amounts of water to take
oral medications.

. DEVELOPMENT AND APPROVAL OF THE STANDARDIZED PROCEDURE:
& Method: This Standardized Procedure was developed through collaboration with Nursing,
Medicine, and Administration.
) Review: Every two (2) years.

B
V. CLINICIANS AUTHORIZED TO PERFORM THIS STANDARDIZED PROCEDURE:
A. All Registered Nurses who have successfully completed orientation are authorized to direct and
perform the Cath Lab Standardized Procedure.

13



(C‘) Tri-City Medical Center

Distribution: Patient Care Services

PROCEDURE:

CATHETER CLEARANCE WITH ALTEPLASE (CATHFLO® ACTIVASE®)

Purpose:

Provide assistance to Registered Nurses with astandard-for-identifying central
venous catheter occlusions and instructions forsa#el-y restorlng patency of occluded
central venous catheters w;th alteplase (Cathﬂo Activase® ) -m—the—adult—pepmaaen—aﬂd

the adult populatlon -

Supportive Data:

Skill Level: Registered Nurse (RN)- reqwres physician order

Equipment:

2 mg vial of alteplase (Cathflo™ Activase ®) from pharmacy
{alteplase) (Cathflo® Activase®) Catheter specific flush
6 alcohol pads x 2

Non-vented port protector or sterile needleless cap
Sterile gloves

(2) 10 mL sterile water

10 mL syringe filled with normal saline

(2) 10 mL syringes

Anti-reflux valves (Microclave) for each clotted lumen
Port Protectors Swabeap-for each clotted lumen

(2) packages of 4x4 gauze

A. DEFINTIONS:

1.
2.

3.

4,

AB.
1.

2.

3.

Patency - a catheter that flushes easily, without resistance, aspirates easily with brisk,

free-flowing blood return

Partial Occlusion - flushing or instilling into a catheter can be done but flow is sluggish

or difficult to infuse

Persistent Withdrawal Occlusion - flushing or instilling is done without resistance;

however there is no blood return

a. Often caused by a fibrin tail hanging off of the end of the catheter.

b. When flushing the catheter, the tail moves away from the distal tip of the catheter,
but when withdrawing blood from the catheter, the fibrin tail acts as a flap which
occludes the distal tip.

Complete Occlusion - inability to flush or withdraw blood from the catheter

PROCEDURE:

Obtain physician/Allied Health Professional (AHP) order for alteplase (Cathflo® Activase®) to

restore patency to each occluded central venous Iumen

Obtain reconstituted alteplase (Cathflo® Activase®) from pharmacy

a. If not reconstituted by pharmacy perform hand hygiene and perform steps outlined
below:

i. Reconstitute alteplase (Cathflo® Activase®) to final concentration of 1 mg/mL.

ii. Aseptically withdraw 2.2 mL of sterile water using 10 mL syringe. (Do not use
Bacteriostatic Water)

i, Inject the 2.2 mL of sterile water into the alteplase (Cathflo® Activase®) vial. Slight
foaming is not unusual; let the vial stand undisturbed to allow large bubbles to
dissipate

iv. Mix by swirling until the contents are completely dissolved. Complete dissolution
should occur wuthln 3 minutes. DO NOT SHAKE. The reconstituted alteplase
(Cathflo® Activase®) is a colorless to pale yellow solutlon

Perform hand hygiene -and withdraw 2 mg (2 mL) of alteplase (Cathflo® Activase®) using a 10
mL syringe.

Department
Review

Clinical Policies
& Procedures

Nursing
Executive
Council

Medical Staff
Department or
Division

Pharmaceutical
& Therapeutics
Committee

Medical
Executive
Committee

Professional
Affairs
Committee

Board of
Directors

05/03, 5/08, 2/11,
714

03/11, 7/14, 08/16

03/11, 7/14,

09/16

n/a

9/14, 09/16

04/11, 10/14,

09/16

05/11, 11/14

7/03, 3/04,
3/06, 8/08,
05/11,12/14

14




Patient Care Services Procedure Manual
| Catheter Clearance with alteplase (Cathfio® Activase®)

Page 2 of 3
4,

| 5.
6.

| 7.

© o

10.

11.

12.
13.

14.

15.

16.

Clamp clotted lumen

Disconnect intravenous (IV) tubing (if applicable); place sterile luer cap on end of tubing.
Open one package of 4x4 gauze, keep gauze on top of opened package, and place both the
opened package and gauze under the clotted lumen.

Open three (3) alcohol preps using aseptic technique and place on opened 4x4 package-

a. Remove anti-reflux valve and use alcohol pad to vigorously cleanse the threads of the
clotted lumen.
b. Repeat two times using a new alcohol pad each time.

Attach 10 mL syringe containing alteplase (Cathflo Actlvase ®} to clotted port:
Unclamp catheter and instill alteplase (Cathflo® Activase®) slowly

a. Do not force
b. If reSIstance met, gently pump syringe to facilitate instillation of alteplase (Cathﬂo
Activase®)

Clamp lumen, remove syringe, and apply anti-reflux (Microclave) valve and port protector

Documeﬁt the date and time alteplase (Cathflo® Activase®) was instilled on a alteplase
(Cathflo® Activase®) “Do Not Flush” label. Place the Iabel dlrectly over the microclave.

Allow catheter lumen to dwell undnsturbed for 30 mlnutes

Instruct patient to alert nurse performing alteplase (Cathflo® Activase®) procedure if any
requests to draw from line by other staff during dwell time occur.

After 30 mlnutes perform hand hygiene, don clean gloves, remove the alteplase (Cathflo®
Activase®) label and microclave using aseptic technique, attach a 10 mL syringe, unclamp
lumen, and aspirate for blood return

a. If resistance is met, gently pump syringe to facilitate movement of lysed clot, being
careful not to flush lumen contents into the patient.

b. Maintain negative pressure with the syringe for at least 30 seconds, then attempt to
aspirate for blood return.

c. If blood easily aspirates, complete the following steps:

i. Aspirate 5 mL bloedblood to remove alteplase (Cathflo® Activase®) and
residual clot,, clamp lumen, and discard blood.

ii. Unclamp lumen and flush with 5-10 mL of normal saline (Alteplase)-catheter
specific-flush, then reclamp lumen

iii. Remove syringe and clean lumen treads with alcohol pads

iv. Attach a new microclave and port protector Swabeap or return to IV infusion

V. Document administration of alteplase (Cathflo® Activase®) and flush volume on
electronic medication admlnlstratlon record (eMAR)-

vi. Document {alteplase} (Cathfio® Activase®) catheter clearance in medical record

vii. Discard any unused solution

If unable to aspirate blood return after 30 minutes, allow the alteplase (Cathflo® Activase®) to

dwell undisturbed an additional 90 minutes (total dwell time is 120 minutes).

a. Clamp lumen, remove syringe, and apply anti-reflux (Microclave) valve and port
protector

b. Reapply alteplase (Cathflo® Activase®) stickeriabel directly over microclave,
document the time (the time represent the last the an attempt was to access the
port)

After 120 minutes, perform hand hyg|ene don clean gloves, remove label alteplase (Cathflo
Activase®) sticker and microclave using aseptic technique, attach a 10 mL syringe, unclamp
lumen, and aspirate for blood.
a. If blood easily aspirates, complete the following steps:
i. Aspirate 5 mL of blood to remove alteplase (Cathflo® Activase®) and residual
clot,; clamp lumen, and discard blood.

15



Patient Care Services Procedure Manual
| Catheter Clearance with alteplase (Cathfio® Activase®)

Page 3 of 3

17.

1.

19.

i. Unclamp lumen and flush with 5-10 mL of normal saline {alieplase)-catheter
speeific-flush, then reclamp lumen.

iii. Remove syringe and clean lumen treads with alcohol pads

iv. Attach a new microclave and port protector Swabeap or return to IV infusion
V. Document administration of alteplase (Cathflo® Activase®) and flush volume on
eMAR
vi. Document (alteplase) catheter clearance in medical record
vii. Discard any unused solution
If unable to aspirate for blood return after 120 minutes:
a. Discard unused alteplase (Cathflo® Activase®).
b. Obtain equipment as outlined in the equipment section of procedure.
C. Notify pharmacy and request a second dose of 2 mg of alteplase (Cathflo® Activase®)

d. Repeat procedure beginning with step 1

If blood easily aspirates after using a total of 4 mg of alteplase (Cathflo® Activase®):

a. Aspirate 5 mL blood, clamp lumen and discard blood

b. Unclamp lumen and flush with (alteplase) (Cathflo® Activase®) catheter specific flush,
then reclamp lumen
Remove syringe and clean lumen treads with alcohol pads
Attach a new microclave and Swabeap-port protector or return to IV infusion
Document administration of alteplase (Cathflo® Activase®) and flush volume on eMAR
Document catheter clearance in medical record
Discard any unused solution

unable to aspirate for blood return after using a total of 4 mg of alteplase (Cathflo® Activase® )
Clamp clotted lumen, remove syringe, and discard unused alteplase (Cathflo® Activase®)
Clean lumen treads with a total of three alcohol wipes using aseptic technique
Place microclave and Swabeap-port protector on clamped clotted lumen
Apply label to microclave marked “Do Not Touch and date, time, and your initials.”
Document administration of alteplase (Cathflo® Activase®) on eMAR
Notify physician and document unable to obtain patency of lumen in the medical record
Communicate events during hand-off

=@ ™0 ao

~PooT®

@

C. RELATED DOCUMENTS:

Patient Care Services Procedure: Central Venous Access Devices

D. REFEERNCES:
g1.

Genentech USA, Inc. (2016). Cathflo activase (alteplase) reconstitution, dosing, and
administration. Retrieved from http://www.cathflo.com/dosing/index.jsp

16



2
@‘9 Tri-City Medical Center

Oceanside, California

PATIENT CARE SERVICES RPOLICY-MANUAL

ISSUE DATE:

8/03 SUBJECT: Cerner Downtime

REVISION DATE: 2/04; 2/05; 5/05; 6/06; 9/08; 2/12 POLICY NUMBER: IX.H

Department Approval: 07/16
Clinical Policies & Procedures Committee Approval: 02/1208/16
Nurse Executive Committee Approval: 02/1209/16
Pharmacy & Therapeutics Committee Approval: 09/16
Medical Executive Committee Approval: 03/1209/16
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: 05/12
Board of Directors Approval: 05/12

A. PURPOSE:

1.

To outline steps that must be completed to initiate physician orders and allow for uninterrupted
patient care when computer downtime occurs.

B. DEFINITIONS:

1.
2.

3.

Affinity: Electronic financial record application.

Bedside Medical Device Integration (BMDI): An application that pulls data from clinical

devices such as vital sign monitoring equipment into the electronic health record (EHR).

Computer Downtime Admissions, Discharges, Transfers -Births-and-Beaths (ADT) Log:

Used to communicate patient transfers and discharges to Registration, Laboratory, Nutrition

Services, and Pharmacy.

Downtime (DT): those periods that Cerner will be out of service and unavailable for use. There

are two types of downtime:

a. Scheduled downtime — to be used for backups, upgrades, and maintenance. All or part
of the system is not available for use during this period of time.

b. Unscheduled downtlme an unforeseen system fallureldowntlme When-a-u-eppartef

Lab Downtlme Log: Used to track a|| future Iab orders not requrred durrng the downtlme These
orders will be entered when the system is restored.

Medication Administration Record (MAR): Blank MAR to be used for new patient admissions
that occur during the downtime.

PACS: Picture Archiving and Communication System.
Universal Requisition: Used to communicate physician orders for ancillary orders such as
Laboratory, RadrologY, Pulmonary, Nutrrtron Services, EEG Cardrology, and Rehab

C. POLICY:

1.

Scheduled Downtime:
a. Planned downtime will be communicated to all patient care and associated support
service areas in advance, by Cerner announcement screen, and email with a flyer for

17



| Patient Care Services Pelicy-Manual

Cerner Downtime (1X-H)
Page 2 of 33

d.

e.

posting. Immediately prior to beginning maintenance, an attempt will be made to notify
all areas that the system will be going down and the expected duration of the downtime.
For Scheduled Maintenance, every attempt is made to perform the maintenance during
off-peak processing times. In general, maintenance will be scheduled starting at 0001 on
Thursday mornings and will be less than 4 hours in duration.

All nursing and ancillary areas will follow the policy and procedures listed below for order
communication and completion, results notification, and clinical data documentation.
Once maintenance is complete, the system is brought back on-line and verified by
Information Technology (IT).

All users will be notified when the system is back on-line and that they may resume
normal operations by overhead paging and calling key departments.

2. Unscheduled Downtime:

a.

During normal business hours staff members will contact the IT Help Desk at 760-940-
7370 to check system status. After hours, staff members will check system status or
report problems to the Administrative Supervisor (AS)-/Patient-Flow-GCoordinater.
Management team will be notified by IT via email that the system is down.
Management/AS will facilitate the communication of the need for above downtime
procedures to be put into place, and end-users will be notified by overhead page.
Management/AS will stay in communication with IT for updates on progress of downtime
repairs and communicate this to all affected departments.

All nursing and ancillary areas will follow the policy and procedures listed below for order
communication and completion, results notification, and clinical data documentation.
Once the problem is fixed and the system is functional again, the system will be brought
back on-line and verified.

Interfaces are brought back up (if applicable) by the IT Operations group and verified to be
connected and passing data.

Users are notified when the system is back on-line by an overhead page and calls to the
key departments to resume normal operations.

Each department will notify their offsite locations as appropriate. IT to notify offsite
locations and clinics as appropriate.

D. PROCEDURE:

1. Powerchart/Orders/Tasks Lists/Documentation: Clinical Areas including Nursing and Ancillary
Departments:

a.

Scheduled Downtime Preparation:

i. Ensure the task list is updated to current time
ii. Print current census one hour before downtime
iii. Print additional patient labels for each inpatient

iv. Stop entering orders 6038 minutes prior to Downtime
V. IT will “force” Operations Jobs as needed
vi. Universal downtime requisitions with unique tracking numbers and barcodes will

be used for all orders

vii. Run Active Order Reports as-reeded-for patient care sixty (60) minutes prior to
expected downtime (e.g. tasklists;resultsany; active orders)

viii. Obtain blank MARSs for new patients

iX. IT to run MAR Report to print to the nursing units thirty-sixty (360) minutes prior to
Downtime.

Scheduled Downtime:

i. Computer generated patient labels will be used, new patients will have handwritten
labels for lab draws that are nurse collectables. The label will have patient name,
medical record number (MRN), date of birth, and the logon Identification (ID) of
the Registered Nurse (RN) collecting the specimen.

ii. Downtime Admit, Discharge, Transfer Log will be activated and all ADT
transactions will be logged.

18



| Patient Care Services Reliey-Manual

Cerner Downtime (IX-H)
Page 3 of 33

Vi.

Vii.

viii.

Xi.

Sched
i.

ii.

Universal Downtime Requisition forms will be completed for all orders to be
completed during Downtime and sent to the appropriate department. Phone
notification will be used when appropriate. Routine orders not expected to be
completed during the downtime should be entered when the system is back up by
the ordering department/unit.

All STAT orders will require a phone call to the servicing department

Lab: Any new routine orders to be done during the anticipated downtime should be

forwarded to lab via the Universal Downtime requisition. Fax these requisitions to

4048.

1) Ali remaining future Lab orders, to be done post downtime, should have the
order written on the manual tracking sheet on the nursing units for re-entry
into Cerner. Any STAT labs will be called to the unit.

Pharmacy: RNs will use the printed MAR for all inpatients. The RN will handwrite

any new orders on this form as well as document all medications administered

during downtime. All new patients will have medications handwritten on a blank

MAR. Nurses must override for all new medication orders during downtime. New

medication orders will not update on the Pyxis Medstation and new patients

admitted during the downtime will have to be manually entered at the Pyxis

MedStation. Caremobile and Careadmin devices will be unavailable during any

system downtime.

Radiology: Any order that needs to be performed during the downtime will be

written on a separate the-Universal Downtime requisition. Each order needs a

unique ID. No Universal Downtime Requisition copies will be allowed. The

original will be forwarded to the ancillary department, and the copy will be
maintained in the requesting patient care area. Nursing staff will write the tracking
number next to the order on the order sheet. Routine orders not expected to be
done during the downtime should be entered when the system is back up by the
ordering department/unit.

Respiratory: All orders will be written on a manual downtime requisition and the

Respiratory Care Practitioner (RCP) paged. The RCP will phone the unit and

determine the priority of the order, then take appropriate action, (i.e. new start

mini-neb- RCP will respond to the unit as soon as possible (ASAP), verify the
order, pick up the requisition and start the therapy.) All charting will be completed
on handwritten Pulmonary charting forms. Retain copies of charting for billing
purposes, and place in chart.

Manual requisitions should be stopped 6036 minutes before the scheduled Cerner

recovery time.

Clinical documentation: If the downtime is more than 4 hours, clinical data will be

tracked on manual forms for the duration of the current shift. If the downtime is

less than 4 hours electronic documentation will be completed upon recovery of the
system.

Nutrition Services: All diet orders need to be communicated to the central diet

office at 4890.

uled Recovery:

When back on-line, ensure adequate staffing to enter clinical data back into the

system.

If manual downtime requisitions have been forwarded to the appropriate

department, do not enter into Cerner.

All receiving Departments except Nutrition Services (i.e. Lab, Respiratory Therapy,

Radiology, Social Services, Rehabilitation Services, Respiratory) will enter orders

from requisitions received during downtime referencing the tracking number in the

comment field, (the owner of the original copy of the requisition will enter the
orders).

19



| Patient Care Services Roliey-Manual

Cerner Downtime (I1X-H)

Page 4 of 33

iv.

V.

Vi.

Vii.

viii.

%xi.

Nursing refers to the manual Lab Tracking list and places orders not sent via the
downtime requisitions during downtime.

Departments who use task lists shall update tasks as soon as possible to keep
lists current

Respiratory charting is to be entered and processed in Cerner once the system is
up. Retain master copies and keep records of all order changes and updates
when system is back up.

Nursing must update all discharges and transfers for information from their ADT
logs and verify admissions.

If the downtime is 4 hours or less, Nursing must enter all clinical documentation
back into the system. Priority is given to allergies, height, weight, Input &
Outputs (1&0s), vitals and meds given before clinical assessment data.

If the downtime is more than 4 hours, nursing must reenter allergies, height,
weight, 1&0s, vitals and meds back into the system. All other documentation will
remain on paper for the remainder of the shift.

If change of shift occurs, documentation must be completed by staff on
paper or in the electronic health record (EHR) prior to leaving the shift.
During the Recovery Phase, Nursing will do a “chart check” to audit the orders and
task list, the same as the midnight chart check. Data can be entered by proxy if
needed.

Unscheduled Downtime:

kiv.

fov.
i,

v=vii.
wviii.

vi-iX.

When all or part of the computer system is noted to be down, but no
announcement has been made, staff will call the Help desk at 940-7370. Staff
will provide detailed description of the event.

IT will investigate issue and determine if unscheduled system wide
downtime has occurred and will notify departments if unscheduled
downtime is confirmed.

Notify-IT Analyst en-call-towill be notified immediately to start operation jobs
for MAR printing.

Printed labels will be used for inpatients, handwritten for any new admissions for
lab draws that are nurse collectables. Handwritten labels will have patient name,
Medical Record Number, date of birth, and the logon ID of the RN collecting the
specimen.

Activate ADT Log to track all Admits, Transfers, Births, and Deaths.

Complete manual Universal Downtime Requisitions for all new orders and use
phone notification when appropriate.

All STAT orders require a phone call to the servicing department.

Lab: Any new routine orders, to be done through the anticipated DT, should be
forwarded to the lab via Universal Downtime requisitions. Fax these requisitions to
4048. All remaining future Lab orders, to be done post DT, write order on manual
tracking log for re-entry into Cerner. Any STAT labs will be called to the unit.
Pharmacy: Hardcopy MAR sheets will be printed from the MAR backup file
RXMOPCO05 and sent to the nursing floors. Nursing-shall-review-Any new
medication orders will be and updated on their copy of the printed MARs from the
time the MAR backup file was created to the current time. All meds given during
downtime shall be documented on the printed MAR. All new meds will be
handwritten on the printed MAR. For new patients, a blank MAR will be used.
Nurses must override for all new medication orders during downtime. New
medication orders will not update on the Pyxis Medstation and new patients
admitted during the downtime will have to be manually entered at the Pyxis
MedStation.

Radiology: A manual downtime requisition will be required for all new orders and a
call will be made to the department. Each order needs a unique ID. No
Universal Downtime Requisition copies will be allowed .The unit will keep the

20



| Patient Care Services Rolicy-Manual
Cerner Downtime (1X-H)
Page 5 of 33

carbon copy of all orders sent. Nursing staff will write the tracking number next to
the order on the order sheet.

viiixi. Respiratory: All orders will be written on a manual downtime requisition and the
RCP paged. The RCP will phone the unit and determine the priority of the order,
then take appropriate action, (i.e. new start mini-neb, RCP will respond to the unit
ASAP, verify the order, pick up the requisition and start the therapy.) All charting
will be completed on handwritten Pulmonary charting forms. Retain copies of

| charting for billing purposes and place in chart. For arterial blood gases (ABGs),
use the manual ABG requisition for recording results.

| ixxii. Nutrition Services: All diet orders need to be communicated to the central diet
office at 4890.

l *-xiii. Manual requisitions should be stopped 38-60 minutes before the Cerner recovery
time, if information provided.

] xixiv. If the downtime exceeds 4hrs, Nursing and Rehabilitation Services will begin to
document all clinical data on existing manual forms and will continue for the
duration of the current shift.

e. Unscheduled Downtime Recovery:

i. If manual requisitions have already been forwarded to the appropriate department,
do not enter into Cerner. The department that has received the requisition will
enter the order into the system when it comes back up.

ii. Except for Nutrition Services, all receiving Departments (i.e. Lab, Respiratory
Therapy (RT), Social Services, Rehab Services, Radiology, and Respiratory)
enter orders received from requisitions received during downtime. This includes
the manual ABG requisitions. The tracking number should be referenced in the
order comment field.

iii. Nursing refers to the manual Lab Downtime Log and enters any iab orders not
sent down via a requisition during the downtime.

iv. Nursing enters all other orders not sent to a department via a downtime requisition.

V. Respiratory charting is to be entered and processed in Cerner once the system is
up. Retain master copies and keep records of all order changes and updates
when system is back up.

vi. Departments who use task lists shall update tasks as soon as possible to keep
lists current

vii. During the Recovery Phase, Nursing should do a “Chart Check” to audit the orders
and task list, the same as the midnight chart check.

viii. All paper documentation will be labeled “Downtime Documentation” and kept in the
medical record.

iX. If the downtime is 4 hours or less, Nursing must enter all clinical documentation
back into the system. Priority is given to allergies, height, weight, 1&0s, vitals and
meds given before clinical assessment data.

X. If the downtime is more than 4 hours, nursing must reenter the following:

1) Allergies
2) Height and weight,
3) 1&0s,
4) Vitals
5) Medications given
6) Admission Medication Reconciliation
7) Admission Patient Histories
Xi. All other documentation will remain on paper for the remainder of the shift.
2. Enterprise Registration Management (ERM): Registration Department
a. Scheduled Downtime Preparation:

i. Print census 15 minutes prior to the system scheduled down time for the current

snapshot of room and bed assignments.

21



| Patient Care Services Pelicy-Manual

Cerner Downtime (IX-H)

Page 6 of 33

Vi.

Vii.

viii.

Before downtime occurs, each Registration area will assemble their downtime
tools (including Downtime Binder) in a central location to begin assigning account
numbers as needed.

A pool of financial numbers (FIN) are to be used for downtime, these numbers
begin with a “9000” which differentiates them as a downtime encounter. Additional
numbers if needed should be requested from the IT Department at least 24 Hours
prior to the scheduled downtime.

An Enterprise Master Patient Index (EMPI) search will be made on the alternative
Medical Records database (Affinity) to check for possible medical record numbers
for patients. A new MRN will not be issued until the system has been restored and
the patient does not already have an MRN.

If a medical record number exists in the EMPI Search, it should be noted on the
downtime registration facesheet in the medical record number field.

All patient demographic, encounter specific and insurance information should be
entered on the facesheet.

Make multiple copies of the facesheet. One copy is for the nursing unit and/or
servicing department, and the other is to keep in the Registration Department for
entry when the system is active and for record keeping.

Preprint labels with downtime numbers preprinted on them.

Scheduled Downtime:

i
ii.
iii.
iv.
V.
Vi.

vii.

If an armband is needed for a new admission during downtime, affix one manually

written label to armband and apply to patient.

Manual ADT using downtime numbers. (9000 numbers) All patient demographic,

encounter specific and insurance information should be entered on the facesheet.

Make copies of orders, insurance cards, and any other data that would be useful

when the system is up.

Enter all information into the downtime ADT Log.

Have patient sign all necessary consent forms.

Keep all paperwork in one central location for re-entry when system is restored (if

over 4 hours).

Power Chart Maternity (PCM) — All Obstetrics (OB) Admissions paperwork will

be routed through Main Registration during normal business hours and

Emergency Department (ED) Registration during off hours regardless if

downtime is scheduled or unscheduled downtime.

1) A communication notice will be sent to the Registration area with the
patient information and admission details.

2) Registration will search the EMPI in the alternative system (Affinity) and
assign the downtime financial number and communicate to OB.

Scheduled Recovery:

iv.

V.

Vi

vii.
viii.

Complete all admit, discharge, transfer data from downtime ADT logs.

ADT data to be re-entered in the following order: 1-Discharges, 2- Transfers, 3-

Admits.

All Admissions for OB must be entered through the Inpatient Downtime

Conversation.

Verify the WH TRACKING GROUP is entered during the admission to ensure

these patients will show up on the PCM Tracking Shell.

All Mothers admissions should be done prior to any Newborn Admissions.

1) The newborn admit should be completed through the Admit Newborn
Procedure which creates the link between mother and baby.

The dirty Bed Queue will be updated AFTER the ADT reconciliation.

The census will be balanced from downtime to current time and validated.

IT and the departments are to be notified when all downtime ADT is complete.

Unscheduled Downtime:

22



| Patient Care Services Policy-Manual
Cerner Downtime (IX-H)

Page 7 of 33

i. If an armband is needed for a new admission during downtime, affix one manual
label to armband and apply to patient.

if. Manual ADT using downtime numbers. (9000 numbers)

iii. Make copies of orders, insurance cards, and any other data that would be useful
when the system is up.

iv. Enter all information into the downtime ADT Log.

V. Have patient sign all necessary consent forms.

vi. Keep all paperwork in one central location for re-entry when system is restored (if
over 4 hours).

e. Unscheduled Downtime Recovery:

i. Complete all admit, discharge, transfer data from downtime ADT logs.

ii. All Admissions for OB must be entered through the Downtime Conversation and
linked to the WH TRACKING GROUP so these patients will show up on the PCM
Tracking Shell.

i All Mother admissions should be done prior to any newborn admission.
1) The newborn admit should be completed through the Admit Newborn

Procedure which creates the link between mother and baby

iv. ADT data to be re-entered in the following order: 1-Discharges, 2- Transfers, 3-
Admits.

V. The dirty Bed Queue will be updated AFTER the ADT reconciliation.

vi. The census will be balanced from downtime to current time and validated.

vii. IT and the departments are to be notified when all downtime ADT is complete.

3. Enterprise Scheduling Management (ESM): Scheduling - Ancillary Departments
a. Scheduled Downtime Preparation:

i. Schedules will be printed out in advance of scheduled downtime, dependent on
the needs of each department, (e.g.: Rehab Services: 1 week, Radiology 48
hours)

b. Scheduled Downtime:

i. Schedulers will not schedule appointments, or view/print schedules during
downtime. When a patient calls to schedule an appointment, their information will
be taken, including the patient’s full name, birth date, phone number, name of
test/procedure needed, reason for exam and ordering physician. It will be
explained that they will be contacted as soon as possible when the system comes
back up.

C. Scheduled Recovery:

i. Enter patient's information into system and either call with appointment times or
schedule the appointment as soon as possible, dependent upon the department’s
needs.

d. Unscheduled Downtime:

i. Schedulers will not schedule appointments, or view/print schedules during
downtime. When a patient calls to schedule an appointment, their information will
be taken, including the patient’s full name, birth date, phone number, name of
test/procedure needed, reason for exam and ordering physician. It will be
explained that they will be contacted as soon as possible when the system comes
back up.

e. Unscheduled Downtime Recovery:

i. Enter patient information into system and either call them with appointment times
or schedule the appointment as soon as possible, dependent upon the
department’s needs.

4, FirstNet: Emergency Department (ED)
a. Scheduled Downtime Preparation:

i. Organize pre-made downtime packets containing paper form and labels: Triage,
Nursing Assessment (which contains documentation of medications and
intravenous [IVs] fluids), Progress Notes, Cardiac Monitor Strip, after

23



| Patient Care Services Pelisy-Manual

Cerner Downtime (IX-H)
Page 8 of 33

evi,
W-Vii.
viviii.
viix.
MikX.

care/Discharge instructions, for example; Universal Downtime Requisition, ADT
Log and Policy.

Unit Secretary/Emergency Medical Technician (EMT) to prepare Universal
Downtime Requisition forms which use unique tracking numbers.

Secure prescription pads for the ED Physicians.

Print a copy of the FirstNet Tracking Screen for an accurate patient list prior to
downtime.

Unit Secretary to retrieve the manual tracking board to be used by
ANM/Charge RN for use during downtime.

Unit Secretary will transfer the FirstNet data to the manual tracking board.
ED Registration to run in-house census and prepare Downtime Log Book.

Unit Secretary/EMT will maintain and update the ADT log.

Print additional patient labels for patients already fully registered in FirstNet.
ED shift supervisor, ANM or designee to communicate with Administrative
Supervisor (AS) to facilitate timely disposition of pending admissions.

Scheduled Downtime:

Vi.

ED staff will revert to paper documentation on the forms listed above and others as

needed, e.g. Sedation, Transfusion on all patients in the department.

ED Physicians, Residents, and Physician Assistants will write orders for

medications and 1Vs on their paper chart and notify nursing of those orders.

Downtime events in the ED will follow the established procedures as outlined in

this document, i.e. utilization of the Universal Downtime Requisition. Additionally,

all Stat orders should be called to the departments.

ED physicians, Residents and Physician Assistants (PA’s) will dictate their notes

into Dragon or use transcription service. Scribes will document assessments and

notes in a word document on their tablets and will copy these documents into a

PowerNote when the system is back online.

ED Quick Reg will have stopped and backup forms will be used by Registration.

All registration will be done manually using Registration’s Cerner predetermined

bank of account numbers.

1) ED Registration will prepare a manual sheet of labels and armband for the
patient and place on the patient chart.

Nursing may have to manually add every patient with their Name and Financial

Number (FIN) into the Med Pyxis during downtime to remove medications.

Scheduled Recovery:

When FirstNet is back on line, ED Registration will ensure adequate staffing to

enter data back into the system.

New patients who arrived during the downtime period that are currently in the ED

will be entered by ED Registration - these patients will then appear on the FirstNet

Tracking board in their correct locations. Nursing is not to register any patients

into the system at this time, all registration to be done by ED Registration using

the following conversations:

1) ED Downtime Conversation — If the patient has an existing MRN, use this
conversation to quickly enter the patient into FirstNet. Enter the FIN (9000)
downtime number that was assigned.

2) Downtime Outpatient — If the patient does NOT have an existing MRN, use
this conversation and the system will automatically assign a MRN to the
patient. Enter the FIN — (9000) downtime number that was assigned.

3) Confirm patient displays on tracking shell in the correct location
a) If the patient does not display on tracking after the registration, use

the ED QUICK REG (Ambulance Icon) from the Registration Tab in
FirstNet and search and select the current downtime encounter
from the visit search window and verify the information and bed

24



| Patient Care Services Policy-Manual
Cerner Downtime (IX-H)
Page 9 of 33

Vi.

vii.

assignment and select OK. This should force the patient to the
tracking shell.

4) Once all patients who are currently in the ED are registered, enter the
remaining patients who have been discharged and place them in the ED
Wait Room so that the ED Clinicians can complete their documentation and
discharge patient accordingly.

5) ED Registration will notify the ED shift supervisor, ANM or designee when
all patients have been entered back into FirstNet.

ED shift supervisor, ANM or designee confirms that patient names and locations

are correct on the FirstNet Tracking Screen and updates screen as indicated with

transfers and discharges.

All receiving Departments (i.e. Lab, RT, Radiology, Social Services, Rehab

Services) will enter orders from requisitions received during downtime referencing

the tracking number, (the owner of the original copy of the requisition will enter the

orders).

Nursing documentation will be entered back into FirstNet dependent upon the

length of the downtime for all patients still in the ED.

If downtime lasts less than one hour:

1) All clinical documentation shall be reentered in Cerner after the patient has
been entered into FirstNet.

If downtime lasts more than one hour:

1) Nursing will document on paper forms for the duration of the downtime and
no data will be back entered into the system when the system comes back
online.

2) During the Recovery Phase, each RN will do a chart check on his/her
designated patients to audit the orders and tasks assigned during
downtime for completion.

3) All patients that were discharged during the downtime period will need to
be discharged in the system by the Unit Secretary/EMT/RNs under the shift
supervisor or designee’s supervision.

4) Validate all downtime patients are in ADT (Affinity), appropriate
documentation is transcribed into Cerner and all Ancillary orders placed
during downtime are viewable in Cerner.

d. Unscheduled Downtime:

| VL

| wi-Vii.

ED Registration pulls Downtime Log Book and begins manual registrations using
established downtime numbers.

Unit Secretary to retrieve the manual tracking board to be used by
ANM/Charge RN for use during downtime. The Unit Secretary will gather all
patient information from Stations A, B, C and D and transfer it to the manual
tracking board to be used by the ANM/Charge RN.

ANM Charge will update the board for admissions and discharges during the
downtime processes.

ED staff will revert to paper documentation on the forms listed above and others as
needed, i.e. Sedation, Transfusion on all patients in the department.

ED Physicians, Residents, and Physician Assistants will write orders for
medications and Vs on their paper chart and notify nursing of those orders.
Downtime events in the ED will follow the established procedures as outlined in
this document, i.e. utilization of the Universal Downtime Requisition. Additionally,
all STAT orders should be called to the departments.

ED physicians, Residents and Physician Assistants will dictate their notes into
Dragon or use transcription service. Scribes will document assessments and notes
in a word document on their tablets and will copy these documents into a
PowerNote when the system is back online.

25



| Patient Care Services Policy-Manual

Cerner Downtime (IX-H)
Page 10 of 33

vikviii.

wviiix.

Unsch
i

Vi,

vii.

viii.

ED Quick Reg will have stopped and backup forms will be used by Registration.
All registration will be done manually using Registration’s Cerner predetermined
bank of account numbers.

1) ED Registration will prepare a manual sheet of labels and armband for the
patient and place on the patient chart.

Nursing may have to manually add every patient with their name and Financial

Number into the Med Pyxis during downtime to remove medications.

eduled Downtime Recovery:

When FirstNet is back on line, EDR Registration will ensure adequate staffing to

enter data back into the system.

ED shift supervisor or designee or designee confirms that patient names and

locations are correct on the FirstNet Tracking Screen.

New patients who arrived during the downtime period that are currently in the ED

will be entered by ED Registration - these patients will then appear on the FirstNet

Tracking board in their correct locations. Nursing is not to register any patients into

the system at this time, all registration is to be done by ED Registration using the

following conversations:

1) ED Downtime Conversation — If the patient has an existing MRN, use this
conversation to quickly enter the patient into FirstNet. Enter the FIN (9000)
downtime number that was assigned.

2) Downtime Outpatient — If the patient does NOT have an existing MRN, use
this conversation and the system will automatically assign a MRN to the
patient. Enter the FIN — (9000) downtime number that was assigned.

3) Confirm patient displays on tracking shell in the correct location
a) If the patient does not display on tracking after the registration, use

the ED QUICK REG (Ambulance Icon) from the Registration Tab in
FirstNet and search and select the current downtime encounter
from the visit search window and verify the information and bed
assignment and select OK. This should force the patient to the
tracking shell.

4) Once all patients who are currently in the ED are registered, enter the
remaining patients who have been discharged and place them in the ED
Wait Room so that the ED Clinicians can complete their documentation and
discharge patient accordingly.

ED shift supervisor, ANM or designee confirms that patient names and locations

are correct on the FirstNet Tracking Screen and updates screen as indicated with

transfers and discharges.

All receiving Departments (i.e. Lab, RT, Radiology, Social Services, Rehab

Services) will enter orders from requisitions received during downtime referencing

the tracking number, (the owner of the original copy of the requisition will enter the

orders).

Nursing documentation will be entered back into FirstNet dependent upon the

length of the downtime.

If downtime lasts less than one hour:

1) Once the patient has been entered into FirstNet, all clinical documentation
will be reentered in Cerner.

If downtime lasts more than one hour:

1) Nursing will document on paper forms for the duration of the downtime and
no data will be back entered into the system when the system comes back
online.

2) During the Recovery Phase, each RN will do a chart check on his/her
designated patients to audit the orders and tasks assigned during
downtime for completion.

26



| Patient Care Services Policy-Manual

Cerner Downtime (IX-H)
Page 11 of 33

3) All patients that were discharged during the downtime period will need to
be discharged in the system by the unit secretary/EMT/RNs under the shift
supervisor or designee’s supervision.

4) Validate all downtime patients are in ADT (Affinity), appropriate
documentation is transcribed into Cerner and all ancillary orders placed
during downtime are viewable in Cerner.

5. Laboratory - Microbiology, General Lab Blood Bank and Blood Gases
Scheduled Downtime Preparation:

a.

iv.

Have an adequate number of Cerner downtime barcode labels printed.

Have an adequate number of reporting forms if manual forms are necessary.
Have phlebotomy review an “Unreceived List” for 8 hours in the past and future
and mark any pending orders.

Lab to print the collection lists for the scheduled downtime after 2345 and include
the 0600 Collection List for the AM run.

Scheduled Downtime:

Vi.

vii.

Nursing units will fax manual Downtime Requisitions to the fax in the Triage area
(4048).

Specimens will come with a manual Universal Downtime Requisition on new
orders only. Specimens from orders prior to DT will be ordered from the
“Unreceived Specimen Log.” All specimen-labeling needs to be checked against
the written order information.

One set of Cerner DT barcode labels should be used for each Universal Downtime
requisition. Place the label(s) on the appropriate manual requisition, specimen(s),
or worksheet for the procedure and all setup media, slides, aliquots, attached to
that procedure. Record specimen received date and time as well as set up date
and time on the requisition.

For ongoing or manual procedures, use worksheets, work cards, Downtime Patient
Results form, and other forms located in the downtime files to record bench
workup. For online results use instrument printouts.

For dispensing blood products, Nurse/Clinician will present the Transfusion
Request Form handwritten with the Transfusion Service ID band number, patient’s
name, billing number and medical record number. Dispense information will be
documented on the Downtime Patient Results form.

For reporting procedures, STAT results will be called to the units. Instrument
printouts and manual Reporting forms will be used to distribute results to the ED.
If there is an extended DT, this method of reporting will also be used for the
nursing units. See specific Laboratory Downtime procedures for further details.
RCPs will continue to use the ABG Requisition Form to record results. A copy will
be made for later recovery.

Scheduled Recovery:

iii.
iv.

When Cerner is back on line, Lab orders will be entered using the Universal DT
requisition and the appropriate Cerner DT barcode accession numbers-#.
Results will be entered into Cerner using the appropriate instrument printouts,
manual report forms, or worksheets.

Blood product dispense information will be entered into Cerner.

ABG results will be entered from the ABG Requisition form.

Unscheduled Downtime

Print the most current “Downtime Collection List” from LABPCO064 located at the
Chemistry Technical Specialist'sPoint-of-Care-Coordinator's desk across from
the blood gas analyzer adjasenttoTriage-and give to the Phlebotomy team for
draws already entered in Cerner.

Obtain the preprinted DT accession barcode labels.

Have an adequate number of reporting forms if manual forms are necessary.
Have phlebotomy review the last “Unreceived List” and mark any pending orders.

27



| Patient Care Services Pelicy-Manrual

Cerner Downtime (I1X-H)

Page 12 of 33

vi.

vii.

viii.

Xi.

Nursing units will fax all Universal Downtime Requisitions for new orders to the
Triage fax (4048).

Specimens will come with a manual Universal Downtime Requisition on new
orders only. Specimens from orders prior to DT will be ordered from the
“Unreceived Specimen Log.” All specimen-labeling needs to be checked against
the written order information.

One set of Cerner DT barcode labels should be used for each Universal Downtime
Requisition. Place the label(s) on the appropriate manual requisition, specimen(s),
or worksheet for the procedure and all setup media, slides, aliquots, attached to
that procedure. Record specimen received date and time as well as set up date
and time on the requisition.

For ongoing or manual procedures, use worksheets, work cards, Downtime Patient
Results form to record bench workup. For on line procedures use instrument
printouts.

For dispensing blood products, Nurse/Clinician will present the Transfusion
Request Form handwritten with the Transfusion Service ID band number, patient’s
name, billing number and medical record number. Dispense information will be
documented on the Downtime Patient Results form.

For reporting procedures, STAT results will be called to the units. Manual
Reporting forms and instrument printouts will be used to distribute resulits to the
ED to the units. If there is an extended DT, this method will also be used for
reporting results to the nursing units. See specific Laboratory Depariment
procedures for further details.

RCPs will use the ABG Requisition form to record results. A copy will be made for
later recovery.

Unscheduled Downtime Recovery:

iii.
iv.

When Cerner is back on line, Lab orders will be entered using the Universal DT
requisition and the appropriate DT barcode accession number.

Results will be entered into Cerner using the appropriate instrument printouts,
manual report forms, worksheets,

Blood product dispense information will be entered into Cerner.

ABG results will be entered from the ABG Requisition form.

6. PharmNet: Pharmacy
Scheduled Downtime Preparation:

a.

iv.
V.

Call for one extra technician, one extra pharmacist depending on downtime
duration.

IT will force operation jobs to run extra MARSs for all patients and pharmacists will
attempt to enter all orders prior to run.

Run IV batch early if due soon.

Pre-printed |V labels will be available for most commonly dispensed products.
Confirm the most recent MAR backup file has been received by RXMOPC05

Scheduled Downtime:

iv.

Turn on “Critical Override” at Pyxis “Profile” MedStations just before the system
goes down. Notify each profile nursing station, the Pharmacy Supervisor and/or
the Director of Pharmacy that the system is on “Critical Override.” Any new
medication orders not in the Pyxis MedStation will be scanned down to the
pharmacist by nursing.

Down time pharmacy labels will be completed manually by Pharmacy.

The responsible pharmacist will call down all new IVPB orders to the IV room.
This information will then be recorded on the MAR along with date/time and the
number of doses sent.

The IV room will generate [V production off scanned orders

Scheduled Recovery:

When back on-line, ensure adequate pharmacist staff to enter orders.

28



| Patient Care Services Polisy-Manual
Cerner Downtime (1X-H)
Page 13 of 33

iv.

After new patients are admitted through the ADT system, pharmacists will begin to
input orders into PharmNet.

Nursing staff to enter allergies, height, and weight on all new admits so the
pharmacist can complete medication order entry.

Turn off “Critical Override” on all Pyxis “Profile” MedStations.

d. Unscheduled Downtime:

vi.
vii.

Turn on “Critical Override” at Pyxis “Profile” MedStations when the system goes
down. Notify each profile nursing station, the Pharmacy Supervisor and/or the
Director of Pharmacy that the system is on “Critical Override.” Any new
medication orders not in the Pyxis MedStation will be scanned down to the
pharmacist by nursing.

Call for one extra technician, one extra pharmacist and adjust staffing accordingly
to workload and downtime duration.

Orders for new admits will be recorded on a blank MAR located in the Pharmacy
Computer Downtime Manual.

Downtime Rx labels will be completed manually by Pharmacy. Pre-printed IV
labels will be available for most commonly dispensed products.

The responsible pharmacist will call down all new IVPB orders to the IV room.
This information will then be recorded on the MAR along with date/time and the
number of doses sent.

The 1V room will generate 1V production from the scanned orders

Pharmacy will print a hard copy of the MAR from the MAR backup file on PC
RXMOPCO05 and send to the nursing unit. For extended downtime (over 24
hours), pharmacy will print a second hardcopy of the MAR from the MAR backup
file for the pharmacy to use and manually update each patient’s medication orders.

e. Unscheduled Downtime Recovery:

iv.

When back on-line, ensure adequate pharmacist staff to enter orders.

After new patients are admitted through the ADT system, pharmacists will begin to
input orders into Pharmnet.

Nursing staff to enter allergies, height, and weight on all new admits so the
pharmacist can complete medication order entry.

Turn off “Critical Override” on all Pyxis “Profile” MedStations.

7. ProfileHIM: Medical Records/Health Information
a. Scheduled Downtime Preparation:

Medical Records will alert transcription team members of impending downtime.
Medical Records will post the Downtime dictation instructions on each unit.

b. Scheduled Downtlme

Physicians will continue dictating reports into the dictation system.
Transcriptionists will continue transcribing reports into the transcription system,
(ADT information will be based upon information sent to the system prior to
downtime)

Coding staffwill-utilize-the-3M-encoderin-stand-alone-modewill be suspended as
documentation is not viewable.

C. Scheduled Recovery:

Cerner work queues will be tested and updated once all registration and discharge
transactions have been entered.
Reports transcribed without patient demographic information will be reviewed; and

edited for viewing in PowerChart—and-reuted-forcharting-on-therecerd.

29



| Patient Care Services Peliey-Manua!
Cerner Downtime (IX-H)
Page 14 of 33

Each Brofile-functionapplication will be tested to ensure system integrity.
ik1)  Coding-statbwillenter manually-coded-information.

d. Unscheduled Downtime:

i.

Charts will be logged out of Medical Records on a manual log to identify location to

which the chart has been taken.

Physicians will continue to dictate reports into the dictation system.

1) if the dictation system is down, dictation is completed via back up dictation
line-at-1-866-414-7522. Handheld dictation units are availabie if phone
lines are down.

Transcriptionists will continue transcribing reports (ADT information will be based

upon information sent prior to downtime).

1) Transcribed reports will queue up in the transcription to Cerner interface
until the system is on-line.

| iv. Coding staff will be on standby.

V. Preparation of the record for scanning will continue.

vi. Analysis /Assignment of deficiencies to the physicians will be suspended until the
system is available.

e. Unscheduled Downtime Recovery:

i. ADT interface to Transcription system will be tested.

ii. Interface to Cerner will be updated to pass transcribed reports to Powerchart.

iii. Each PFGMe—funetienappllcatuon Wl|| be tested to ensure system lntegrlty
1) s

iv. Master Patient Index (MPI) specialist to review MRN’s assigned during

downtime to confirm any combined MRN'’s needed.

8. RadNet: Radiology/Imaging Department
a. Scheduled Downtime Preparation:

Print schedules for downtime plus 48 hours.

b. Scheduled Downtime:

ifi.

When Cerner is down, Registration will look up patients in Affinity to find a medical
record number for admitted patients. If no medical record number exists, the
patient will be assigned a “downtime medical record number.” A handwritten
facesheet will be completed by registration for each patient.

The ED Unit Secretaries and ED staff will call STAT radiology exam orders to the
department and will send the separate Universal Downtime Requisition for each
order with a unique tracking number. Outpatients will come from admitting with
their hand written face sheet.

The technologist will substitute the full unique tracking number located on the
universal downtime requisition as the PACS ID. The technologist will enter the
downtime PACS ID into all digital modalities. Only one down time PACS ID may
be used per exam.

iv. The technologist will perform the exam and enter the “begin” and “end” times on
the downtime requisition, indicate if IV contrast was used, the amount of contrast,
and enter his/her full name where indicated.

ivv. Completed exam downtime requisitions will be delivered to the film library
for radiologist dictation. The radiologist will dictate the Universal Downtime
number into the report.

v-vi. For existing Radiology requisitions dBictation will be completed as usual by
entering the medical record into the dictation system.

vi-vii. Transcription will use Word to transcribe dictated reports using the medical record
received from the dictation system.

C. Scheduled Recovery:

Wait for ADT feed.
Delete any duplicate orders.

30



| Patient Care Services Policy-Manual

Cerner Downtime (IX-H)

Page 15 of 33

9.

iv.

V.

vi.

Enter and complete orders in Cerner using the unique Universal Downtime
Requisition tracking number and reference the FIN/Account Number (will be a
9000 number for downtime).

Transcription will paste transcribed results from Word into Cerner and validate
accuracy.

The PACS supervisor will reconcile all downtime PACS ID numbers with the
Cerner PACS ID in the PACS system.

Reference Radiology Department specific policies for detailed downtime workflow.

Unscheduled Downtime:

fkvi.

Vi,

vi-viii.

When Cerner is down, Registration will look up patients in Affinity to find a medical
record number for admitted patients. If no medical record number exists, the
patient will be assigned a “downtime medical record number.” A handwritten
facesheet will be completed for each patient.

The Unit Secretaries and ED will call STAT diagnostic imaging exam orders to the
department and will send the separate Universal Downtime Requisition for each
order with a unique tracking number.

Outpatients will come from admitting with their hand written face sheet.

The technologist will substitute the full unique tracking number located on the
universal downtime requisition as the PACS ID. The technologist will enter the
downtime PACS ID into all digital modalities. Only one down time PACS ID may
be used per exam.

The technologist will perform the exam and enter the “begin” and “end” times on
the downtime requisition, indicate if IV contrast was use, the amount of contrast,
and enter his/her full name where indicated.

Completed exam downtime requisitions will be delivered to the film library
for radiologist dictation. The radiologist will dictate the Universal Downtime
number into the report.

Dictation will be completed as usual by entering the medical record into the Lanier
dictation system.

Transcription will use Word to transcribe dictated reports using the medical record
received from the dictation system.

Unscheduled Downtime Recovery:

i.
ii.
iii.
iv.
V.

Vi

Wait for ADT feed.

Delete any duplicate orders.

Enter and complete orders in Cerner using the unique Universal Downtime
Requisition tracking number and reference the FIN/Account Number (will be a
9000 number for downtime).

Transcription will paste transcribed results from Word into Cerner and validate
accuracy.

The PACS supervisor will reconcile all downtime PACS ID number with the Cerner
PACS ID in the PACS system.

Reference Radiology Department specific policies for detailed downtime workflow.

Surginet: Surgery Scheduling, Pre-Op and Intraoperative Documentation
Scheduled Downtime Preparation:

a.

Have an adequate number of preoperative assessment, intra-operative
worksheets, implant records, downtime schedule book and labels for each case /
procedure made up for a minimum of one hundred-fifty (150) cases.

Routine scheduling is not done during Surginet downtime. Surgery schedulers will
call the surgeon’s offices when the system is back up and running.

Daily back-up of the next 3 months schedule is saved electronically to a USB
drive.

Sterile Processing Department (SPD) maintains a hard copy file of preference
cards accessible to the OR staff.

Scheduled Downtime:

3



| Patient Care Services Polisy-Manual
Cerner Downtime (IX-H)
Page 16 of 33

i. The circulating nurse will document the intra-operative phase of the cases or
procedures on a hardcopy of intraoperative forms.

ii. Implants will be documented on a hardcopy of the implant record.

iii. Copies of the intra-operative forms and implant records will be placed on the
patient record until the system is back up and running.

iv. TCMC will not be able to schedule appointments, view or print any Surginet
Surgery schedules during the downtime.

V. Manual scheduling will go into effect.

vi. Add-on/urgent cases shall be manually scheduled during downtime. Schedule the

cases in Surginet when the system is back up. Routine scheduling of elective
cases is not done during Surginet downtime.

vii. Save copies of all downtime operative records for later entry (using late entry
protocol) and charging.
viii.  All peri-operative assessments and clinical case data (including implant

information), will be manually documented during the Surginet downtime on a hard
copy of the forms.

iX. Charges will be manually entered into Affinity during downtime on a daily basis.

c. Scheduled Recovery:

i. Enter future scheduled patients and data from the manual hard copy into the
Surginet system.

ii. Print a new schedule if needed and validate the following: ali manual schedules
(Date of Procedure; OR Room Assigned, Start Time, Estimated OR Time,
Patient's Name, Birth date, Social Security Number, Patient's home phone
number, Pre-Operative Diagnosis, Procedure Scheduled, Surgeon, Name of
Assistants, Special Equipment Needs, Name of Office Staff/Surgeon Scheduling,
Insurance Information and the Initials of the Scheduling Secretary that documents
the information etc) to the Surginet Schedule. Ensure there are no scheduling
conflicts with rooms, equipment or supplies.

iii. Circulating nurses for the cases will back enter all clinical data for cases that
occurred during the downtime following “Late Entry Protocol” into the Surginet

System.
iv. Notify the physicians’ office staffs that system is back online and verify that all
patient information; procedures, dates and times are accurate.

d. Unscheduled Downtime:
i The circulating nurse will document the intra-operative phase of the cases or
procedures on a hardcopy of the intra-operative forms.
ii., Implants will be documented on a hardcopy of the implant record.
iii. Copies of the intra-operative forms and implant records will be placed on the
patient record until the system is back up and running.

iv. TCMC will not be able to schedule appointments, view or print any Surginet
Surgery schedules during the downtime.

V. Manual scheduling will go into effect.

vi. Add-on/urgent cases shall be manually scheduled during downtime. Schedule the

cases in Surginet when the system is back up. Routine scheduling of elective
cases is not done during Surginet downtime.

vii. Save copies of all downtime operative records for later entry (using late entry
protocol) and charging.
viii. All peri-operative assessments and clinical case data (including implant

information), will be manually documented during the Surginet downtime on a hard
copy of the forms.
iX. Charges will be manually entered into Affinity during downtime on a daily basis.
e. Unscheduled Downtime Recovery:
i. Enter future scheduled patients and data from the manual hard copy into the
Surginet system.

32



| Patient Care Services Pelicy-Manual
Cerner Downtime (IX-H)
Page 17 of 33

il Print a new schedule if needed and validate the following: all manual schedules
(Date of Procedure; OR Room Assigned, Start Time, Estimated OR Time,
Patient’'s Name, Birth Date, Social Security Number, Patient’s home phone
number, Pre-Operative Diagnosis, Procedure Scheduled, Surgeon, Name of
Assistants, Special Equipment Needs, Name of Office Staff/Surgeon Scheduling,
Insurance Information and the Initials of the Scheduling Secretary that documents
the information etc) to the Surginet Schedule. Ensure there are no scheduling
conflicts with rooms, equipment, or supplies.

iii. Circulating nurses for the cases will back enter all clinical data for cases that
occurred during the downtime following “Late Entry Protocol” into the Surginet
System.

iv. Notify the physicians’ office staffs that system is back online and verify all patient
information; procedures, dates, and times are accurate.

| 10. Electrocardiogram (ECGEKG) Powerchart: ECGEKGs

a. Scheduled Downtime Preparation
| i. 30 minutes prior to downtime, download the modality worklist on all the ECGEKG
carts.
b. Scheduled Downtime

i. Continue acquiring and transmitting ECGs during Millennium downtime.
| ii. If the order staffyou need to acquire is already on the cart’s worklist, acquire the
ECG with the appropriate order and transmit.
| iif. If staffyou cannot download orders to the ECG cart, enter the patient data
manually on the cart and transmit.
1) Print 3 copies of every ECG acquired during downtime
a) 1% copy goes to ordering physician for preliminary
interpretation/viewing. Critical result notification process remains
unchanged (ECG technicianRT will still add a comment on the
ECG documenting the clinician they communicated critical results
to).

b) 2nd copy goes to reading cardiologist bin

c) 3" copy is kept by the ECG technicianRespiratory-Therapist.
Retain these printed ECGs until downtime is over. They will be used
to ensure all ECGs acquired during downtime have orders placed
and match the order.

d) Be sure to attach an ADT (patient packet) sticker to each printed
copy of the ECG.

C. Scheduled Recovery - when Millennium comes back up:

i. All ECGs that were transmitted during the downtime will be announced to Cerner
and will either auto-match (if acquired with an order) or be available on the manual
match list for matching to the order.

i. When youstaff are notified that downtime is over, log into PowerChart.

ii. Review each printed ECG copy yeustaff acquired during downtime.

1) If an order existed prior to downtime, verify that theyeur transmitted ECG
auto-matched and completed the order.

2) If no order exists for one of theysur printed ECGs, place an order for it
using the ADT patient information that is on the patient’s sticker. Then,
verify that the ECG yeustaff transmitted during downtime is available on
the ECG match list, and match it to the order and finish theyour ECG
process (right-click and stamp staffyour name on it as normal).

iv. ECG technicianRespiratory-Admin will go to Cardiologist reading bin and collect
all paper ECGs that were submitted to the Cardiologist during downtime.

1) ECG technicianRespiratery-Admin will reconcile all signed paper ECGs
with their corresponding order and matched ECG images to be sure that all

33



| Patient Care Services Pelicy-Manrual
Cerner Downtime (IX-H)
Page 18 of 33

signed paper ECGs have orders placed and have been matched to their
digital ECG images.

2) ECG technicianRespiratory-Admin will then return the signed paper ECGs
to the reading Cardiologist(s) and direct them to re-sign the digital copy for
each printed ECG from their PowerChart ECG worklist.

3) Any unsigned paper ECGs will be discarded by the ECG
technicianRespiratery-Admin and the reading Cardiologist will read them
from their PowerChart ECG worklist as normal.

d. Unscheduled Downtime

Continue acquiring and transmitting ECGs during Millennium downtime.
If the order yeustaff need to acquire is already on the cart’s worklist, acquire the
ECG with the appropriate order and transmit.
If youstaff cannot download orders to the ECG cart, enter the patient data
manually on the cart and transmit.
1) Print 3 copies of every ECG acquired during downtime
a) 1% copy goes to ordering physician for preliminary
interpretation/viewing. Critical result notification process remains
unchanged (ECG technicianRT will still add a comment on the
ECG documenting the clinician they communicated critical results
to).
b) 2nd copy goes to reading cardiologist bin
c) 3" copy is kept by the ECG technicianRespiratory Therapist.
Retain to these printed ECGs until downtime is over. They will be
used to ensure all ECGs acquired during downtime have orders
placed and match the order.
d) Be sure to attach an ADT (patient packet) sticker to each printed
copy of the ECG.

e. Unscheduled Downtime Recovery - when Millennium comes back up:

All ECGs that were transmitted during the downtime will be announced to Cerner
and will either auto-match (if acquired with an order) or be available on the manual
match list for matching to the order.

When yeustaff are notified that downtime is over, log into PowerChart.

Review each printed ECG copy yeustaff acquired during downtime.

1) If an order existed prior to downtime, verify that theyeur transmitted ECG
auto-matched and completed the order.

2) If no order exists for one of theyeur printed ECGs, place an order for it
using the ADT patient information that is on the patient’s sticker. Then,
verify that the ECG yeustaff transmitted during downtime is available on
the ECG match list, and match it to the order and finish theysur ECG
process (right-click and stamp staffyeur name on it as normal).

iv. ECG technicianRespiratery-Admin will go to Cardiologist reading bin and collect
all paper ECGs that were submitted to the Cardiologist during downtime.

| 1) ECG technicianRespiratory-Admin will reconcile all signed paper ECGs
with their corresponding order and matched ECG images to be sure that all
signed paper ECGs have orders placed and have been matched to their
digital ECG images.

| 2) ECG technicianRespiratory-Admin will then return the signed paper ECGs
to the reading Cardiologist(s) and direct them to re-sign the digital copy for
each printed ECG from their PowerChart ECG worklist.

3) Any unsigned paper ECGs will be discarded by the ECG
technicianRespiratery-Admin and the reading Cardiologist will read them
from their PowerChart ECG worklist as normal.

| f. ECGEKG Downtime Scenarios

All of Millennium is down

34



| Patient Care Services Pelicy-Manual

Cerner Downtime (IX-H)
Page 19 of 33

1) Impact:
a) Gar'tCannot place ECG orders
b) CartCannot download orders to cart
c) GanrtCannot match ECGs
d) GartCannot unmatch ECGs
e) GanitCannot view or sign ECGs

2) Downtime procedure;
a) Enter patient information manually at the cart.
b) Continue acquiring and transmitting ECGs as normal.
c) Print any stat/critical ECGs and deliver to attending physician, since

these will not be viewable in the chart until Millennium comes back
up and they can be matched to their orders.

d) Critical result notification process remains unchanged (ECG
technicianRT will still add a comment on the ECG documenting the
clinician they communicated critical results to).

e) When Millennium comes back up, all ECGs that were transmitted
during the downtime will be announced to Cerner and will either
auto-match (if acquired with an order) or be available on the manual
match list for matching to the order. At this point, they will be
viewable in PowerChart/FirstNet.

f) Print extra copies of all ECGs acquired during downtime, and place
the ADT sticker/label on the ECG. These ECGs will be used to
verify that all ECGs were transmitted and matched after we come
out of downtime.

g) Upon downtime completion (or cessation), ECG
technicianRespiratoryBeparmentwill place orders for all ECGs
acquired during downtime, so that the transmitted ECGs can be
matched to the orders.

h) Any paper ECGs that are interpreted by Cardiologists during
downtime will be collected by ECG technicianRespiratory
Administrater at end of downtime. ECG technicianRespiratory
Admin will reconcile all signed paper ECGs with their corresponding
order and matched ECG images. ECG technicianRespiratory
Admin will then return the paper ECGs to the reading
Cardiologist(s) and direct them to sign the digital copy that is now
available in their PowerChart ECG worklist.

3) Not impacted:

a) Acquiring and transmitting ECGs.

| i MGate server is down}

1) Impact:
a) Can'tCannot download new orders to cart.
b) Gar'tCannot transmit ECGs to Cerner.
2) Downtime procedure:
a) Continue to ask physicians to place orders for ECGs, even though

| youstaff can‘tcannot download the orders to the cart or transmit
the ECGs to Cerner for matching. This way orders will be present
and ready to match to ECGs when they can be transmitted.

b) Enter patient information manually at the cart.

c) Print any stat/critical ECGs and deliver to attending physician, since
these will not be viewable in the chart until the MGate comes back
up and the ECGs can be transmitted and matched to their orders.

d) Older ECGs that are already stored and matched can still be
viewed and signed as normal.

35



| Patient Care Services Polisy-Manual

Cerner Downtime (IX-H)
Page 20 of 33

e) When MGate comes back up, transmit all ECGs that were acquired
during the downtime from the cart directory. Manually match the
ECGs to their orders.

3) Not impacted:

a) Placing ECG orders.

b) Viewing and Signing ECGs already transmitted to Cerner.

c) Matching ECGs.

d) Unmatching ECGs.

1. Fetalink: Fetal Monitoring System
Scheduled Downtime Preparation

a.

iv.

V.

Planned Downtime will be communicated to Labor & Delivery in Advance.

Labor & Delivery to finalize and disassociate all Fetalink episodes 15 minutes prior
to scheduled downtime.

For scheduled maintenance every attempt is made to perform the maintenance
during off-peak times.

Labor & Delivery will staff the unit for 1:1 monitoring during Fetalink Downtime.
Labor & Delivery Staff will ensure all fetal monitors in use have paper strips
printing.

Scheduled Downtime

For Cerner scheduled downtime, finalize and disassociate all Fetalink episodes for
patients not currently being monitored.

Notification of downtime mode for users already signed into Fetalink is given by
displaying the words “Downtime Mode” in the status bar of Fetalink.

A warning message is given upon launching the application that “Fetalink is
currently in downtime mode. Contact theyeur system administrator for more
information.” Some features are unavailable at this time.

During downtime user will have the ability to:

1) Central/Bedside Monitor Patients.

2) Make Annotations (including reason for monitoring).
a) Annotations made during downtime post when Cerner goes back up
as long as the patient is associated to the fetal monitoring episode.
b) If Cerner goes back up and the patient was not already associated

to the monitoring episode, the system will send the data to Cerner
once the patient is associated to the fetal monitoring episode.
The following features are unavailable during Cerner downtime:

1) Finalize Episode, Patient Archive, and printing Options are disabled.

2) Extended view displays up to 24 hours of patient history data.

3) Archive perspective is unavailable.

4) An unassociated patient can be monitored, but not associated to a device.
5) Strip annotation is available, but the annotations do not post to Cerner until

the system is back up.

Scheduled Downtime Recovery

vi.

Once maintenance is complete the system is brought back online and verified by
iT.

Labor and Delivery staff will be notified once Fetalink is back up.

Utilize P2DA to retroactively associate and finalize and/or disassociate patients to
and from fetal monitors.-aceerding-te-the-times-documented-enthe
PowerChar/Fetalink-Downtime-Log.

Accurate documentation on the paper log during downtime is critical when
retroactively associating patients.

Users should associate and disassociate patients from fetal monitors in order of
earliest time to latest time.

When multiple patients are associated to one monitor during Cerner downtime
user may be asked a “question” to confirm that the user wants to override an

36



| Patient Care Services Policy-Manual

Cerner Downtime (IX-H)
Page 21 of 33

episode that is associated to a different patient. Ensure the time youstaff are
entering is correct and say “Yes” to continue.

vii. Launch a new episode of Fetalink.

viii. Ensure patients are associated to correct fetal monitor.

iX. Utilize P2DA/Scanner to associate new patients to fetal monitor.

d. Unscheduled Downtime

i. Notify Manager, Assistant Nurse Manager or designee or in off hours the
Administrative Supervisor erPatient-Flew-Coeerdinaterto communicate event to IT.

ii. Labor & Delivery Assistant Nurse Manager designee will make every attempt to
staff unit to 1:1 ratio and will cancel all elective procedures until Fetalink is back
up.

iii. Labor & Delivery Assistant Nurse Manager or designee will stay in contact with IT
for updates on progress of downtime repairs.

iv. Notification of downtime mode for users already signed into Fetalink is given by
displaying the words “Downtime Mode” in the status bar of Fetalink.

V. A warning message is given upon launching the application that “Fetalink is
currently in downtime mode. Contact theyeur system administrator for more
information.” Some features are unavailable at this time.

vi. During downtime user will have the ability to:

1) Central/Bedside Monitor Patients.
2) Make annotations (including reason for monitoring).
a) Annotations made during downtime post when Cerner goes back up
as long as the patient is associated to the fetal monitoring episode.
3) If Cerner goes back up and the patient was not already associated to the
monitoring episode, the system will send the data to Cerner once the
patient is associated to the fetal monitoring episode.
vii. The following features are unavailable during Cerner downtime:
1) Finalize Episode, Patient Archive, and printing Options are disabled.
2) Extended view displays up to 24 hours of patient history data.
3) Archive perspective is unavailable.
4) An unassociated patient can be monitored, but not associated to a device.
5) Strip annotation is available, but the annotations do not post to Cerner until
the system is back up.
e. Unscheduled Downtime Recovery

i. System is brought back online and verified by IT.

ii. Labor and Delivery staff will be notified once Fetalink is back up.

iif. Utilize P2DA to retro actively associate and finalize and/or disassociate patients to
and from fetal monitors.-according-te-the-times-documented-onthe
Fewerchani~elalnleDownlivna-Log,

iv. Accurate documentation on the paper log during downtime is critical when
retroactively associating patients.

V. Users should associate and disassociate patients from fetal monitors in order of
earliest time to latest time.

Vi. When multiple patients are associated to one monitor during Cerner downtime
user may be asked a “Question” to confirm that they user does want to override an
episode that is associated to a different patient. Ensure the time youstaff are
entering is correct and say “Yes” to continue.

vii. Launch a new episode of Fetalink.

viii. Ensure patients are associated to correct fetal monitor.

ix. Utilize P2DA/Scanner to associate new patients to fetal monitor.

12, interventional Radiology (IR)
a. Scheduled Downtime Preparation:

Organize pre-made downtime packets containing paper form and labels:

37



| Patient Care Services Pelicy-Manrual
Cerner Downtime (IX-H)
Page 22 of 33

1) Nursing Assessment (which contains documentation of Meds and
IVs), Progress Notes, Cardiac Monitor Strip, after care/discharge
instructions, for example; Universal Downtime Requisition.

ii. Charge nurse will print current IR census one hour before downtime.

b. Scheduled Downtime:

i. IR staff will revert to paper documentation on the forms listed above and
others as needed, e.g. Sedation, Transfusion on all patients in the
department.

ii. IR physicians; and Allied Health ProfessionalsPhysician-Assistants
(AHP) will write orders for medications and IVs on their paper chart and
notify nursing of those orders. Downtime events in IR will follow the
established procedures in this document, i.e. utilization of the
Universal Downtime Requisition.

1) Additionally, all Stat orders should be called to the departments.

iii. IR physicians and AHPs Physician-Assistants will dictate their notes into
Dragon or use the transcription service.

iv. Registration will prepare a manual sheet of labels and armband for the
patient and place on the patient chart.
V. Nursing may have to manually add every patient with their Name and

Financial Number (FIN) into the Med Pyxis during downtime to remove
medications.

vi. For patients that are transferred to designated locations e.g., SPRA,
PACU or ICU, the IR RN will give the receiving department RN a hands-
off report, and the downtime patient chart.

c. Scheduled Recovery:

i. New patlents who arrived during the downtime period that are currently in
IR will remain on downtown forms.

ii. All patients that were discharged during the downtime period will need
to be discharged in the system by the RN or Technologist. The paper
chart will go down to Medical Records.

iii. Radiology techs will enter orders from requisitions received during
downtime referencing the tracking number, (the owner of the original
copy of the requisition will enter the orders).

iv. Nursing will document on paper forms for the duration of the downtime and
no data will be back entered into the system when the system comes back
online.

d. Unscheduled Downtime:

i Registration pulls Downtime Log Book and begins manual registrations
using established downtime numbers.

iii. IR staff will revert to paper documentation on the forms listed above and
others as needed, i.e. Sedation, Transfusion on all patients in the department.

iii. IR physicians; and AHPsPhysician-Assistants will write orders for
medications and IVs on their paper chart and notify nursing of those
orders.

iv. Downtime events in the IR will follow the established procedures as
outlined in this document, i.e. utilization of the Universal Downtime
Requisition. Additionally, all STAT orders should be called to the

departments.

V. IR physicians; and AHPs Physician-Assistants will dictate their notes into
Dragon or use transcription service.

vi. Registration will prepare a manual sheet of labels and armband for the

patient and place on the patient chart. All registration will be done manually
using Registration's Cerner predetermined bank of account numbers.

38



| Patient Care Services Reliey-Manual

Cerner Downtime (1X-H)
Page 23 of 33

a.

b.

vii. Nursing may have to manually add every patient with their name and
Financial Number into the Med Pyxis during downtime to remove
medications.

Unscheduled Downtime Recovery:

i. New patlents who arrived during the downtime period that are currently in IR
will remain downtown forms. All patients that were discharged during the
downtime period will need to be discharged in the system by the RN or
Technologist. The paper chart will go down to Medical Records.

ii. Radiology Techs will enter orders from requisitions received during
downtime referencing the tracking number, (the owner of the original copy
of the requisition will enter the orders).

iii. Nursing will document on paper forms for the duration of the downtime and no
data will be back entered into the system when the system comes back online.

13. Cardiology Department

Scheduled Downtime Preparation:

i. Print schedules for downtime.

Scheduled Downtime:

i. When Cerner is down, Registration will look up patients in Affinity to find a
medical record number for admitted patients. If no medical record number
exists, the patient will be assigned a "downtime medical record number.” A
handwritten facesheet will be completed by registration for each patient.

ii. The ED Unit Secretaries and ED staff will call STAT cardiology exam orders
to the department and will send the separate Universal Downtime
Requisition for each order with a unique tracking number. Outpatients will
come from Admitting with their hand written face sheet.

iii. The technologist will substitute the full unique tracking number located on
the Universal Downtime Requisition as the downtime medical record
number. The technologist will enter the downtime medical record number
into all digital modalities. Only one downtime medical record may be used
per exam.

iv. The technologist will perform the exam and enter the "begin" and "end"
times on the downtime requisition, indicate if IV contrast was used, the
amount of contrast, and enter his/her full name where indicated.

V. Dictation will be completed as usual by entering the medical record
into the dictation system.
vi. Transcription will use Word to transcribe dictated reports using the

medical record received from the dictation system.
Scheduled Recovery:
i. Delete any duplicate orders.
ii. Enter and complete orders in Cerner using the unique Universal Downtime.
iii. Requisition tracking number and reference the FIN/Account Number (will be
a 9000 number for downtime).

iv. Transcription will paste transcribed results from Word into Cerner and
validate accuracy.
V. Reference Cardiology Department specific policies for detailed

downtime workflow.

Unscheduled Downtime:

i. When Cerner is down, Registration will look up patients in Affinity to
find a medical record number for admitted patients. If no medical record
number exists, the patient will be assigned a "downtime medical record
number." A handwritten facesheet will be completed for each patient.

ii. Outpatients will come from admitting with their hand written face sheet.

iiii. The technologist will substitute the full unique tracking number located on
the Universal Downtime Requisition as the downtime medical record

39



| Patient Care Services Policy-Manual

Cerner Downtime (IX-H)

Page 24 of 33
number. The technologist will enter the downtime medical record number
into all digital modalities. Only one downtime medical record number may
be used per exam.

iv. The technologist will perform the exam and enter the "begin" and "end"
times on the downtime requisition, indicate if IV contrast was use, the
amount of contrast, and enter his/her full name where indicated.

V. Dictation will be completed as usual by entering the medical record into the
Lanier dictation system.

vi. Transcription will use Word to transcribe dictated reports using the medical
record received from the dictation system.

e. Unscheduled Downtime Recovery:

i. Delete any duplicate orders.

ii. Enter and complete orders in Cerner using the unique Universal Downtime
Requisition tracking number and reference the FIN/Account Number (will be
a 9000 number for downtime).

iil. Transcription will paste transcribed results from Word into Cerner and
validate accuracy.

ixiv. Reference Cardiology Department specific policies for detailed downtime
workflow.

14. Cardiac Cath Lab (CCL)
a. Scheduled Downtime Preparation:

i. Organize pre-made downtime packets containing paper form and labels:
Nursing Assessment (which contains documentation of Meds and IVs),
Progress Notes, Cardiac Monitor Strip, after care/Discharge instructions, for
example; and Universal Downtime Requisition.

ii. Charge nurse will print current CCL census one hour before downtime.

b. Scheduled Downtime:

i. CCL staff will revert to paper documentation on the forms listed above
and others as needed, e.g. Sedation, Transfusion on all patients in the
department. CCL will continue Hemodynamics charting in McKesson,
will print a copy for the nursing units.

il. CCL Physicians will write orders for medications and IVs on their paper
chart and notify nursing of those orders.

iii. Downtime events in CCL will follow the established procedures as
outlined in this document, i.e. utilization of the Universal Downtime

Requisition.
1) Additionally, all Stat orders should be called to the departments.
iv. CCL physicians will dictate their notes into Dragon or use
transcription service.
V. Registration will prepare a manual sheet of labels and armband for the
patient and place on the patient chart.
vi. Nursing may have to manually add every patient with their Name and

Financial Number (FIN) into the Med Pyxis during downtime to remove
medications

vii. Patients that are transferred to designated locations e.g., SPRA, PACU
or Unit the CCL RN will give the receiving department RN a hands-off
report, and the downtime patient chart.

viii.  The technologist will substitute the full unique tracking number located
on the universal downtime requisition as the downtime medical record
number. The technologist will enter the downtime medical record
number into all digital modalities, only one downtime medical record
number may be used per exam.

40



| Patient Care Services Rolicy-Manual

Cerner Downtime (IX-H)
Page 25 of 33

ix. The technologist will perform the exam and enter the "begin" and
"end" times on the downtime requisition, indicate if IV contrast was
used, the amount of contrast, and enter his/her full name.

X. Dictation will be completed as usual by entering the medical record
into the dictation system.
Xi. Transcription will use Word to transcribe dictated reports using the
medical record received from the dictation system.
c. Scheduled Recovery:

i. New patients who arrived during the downtime period that are currently in
CCL will remain on downtown forms and in McKesson hemodynamic
system.

ii. All patients that were discharged during the downtime period will need to be
discharged in the system by the RN or Technologist. The paper chart will go
down to Medical Records.

iii. Radiology techs will enter orders from requisitions received during
downtime referencing the tracking number, (the owner of the original copy
of the requisition will enter the orders).

iv. Enter and complete orders in Cerner using the unique Universal Downtime
Requisition tracking number and reference the FIN/Account Number
(will be a 9000 number for downtime).

V. Transcription will paste transcribed results from Word into Cerner and
validate accuracy.
vi. Nursing will document on downtime forms and in McKesson for the duration of

the downtime and no data will be back entered into the system when the system
comes back online.
d. Unscheduled Downtime:

i. Reglstratlon pulls Downtime Log Book and begins manual registrations
using established downtime numbers.

ii. CCL staff will revert to paper documentation on the forms listed above and
others as needed, i.e. Sedation, Transfusion on all patients in the department.
Will continue to document hemodynamics in McKesson.

iiii. CCL Physicians, will write orders for medications and IVs on their paper chart
and notify nursing of those orders.

iv. Downtime events in the CCL will follow the established procedures as
outlined in this document, i.e. utilization of the Universal Downtime
Requisition. Additionally, all STAT orders should be called to the

departments.

V. CCL physicians, will dictate their notes into Dragon or use the transcription
service.

vi. Registration will prepare a manual sheet of labels and armband for the

patient and place on the patient chart. All registrations will be done
manually using Registration's Cerner predetermined bank of account

numbers.

vii. Nursing may have to manually add every patient with their name and
Financial Number into the Med Pyxis during downtime to remove
medications.

e. Unscheduled Downtime Recovery:

i. New patients who arrived during the downtime period that are currently in
CCL will remain downtown forms.

ii. All patients that were discharged during the downtime period will need
to be discharged in the system by the RN or Technologist. The paper
chart will go down to Medical Records.

41



| Patient Care Services Poliey-Manual

Cerner Downtime (IX-H)
Page 26 of 33

b-a.

s:b.

d-c.

e-d.

fe.

42-15. BMDI:

iii. Radiology techs will enter orders from requisitions received during
downtime referencing the tracking number, (the owner of the original copy
of the requisition will enter the orders).

iv. Enter and complete orders in Cerner using the unique Universal Downtime
V. Requisition tracking number and reference the FIN/Account Number

(will be a 9000 number for downtime).
vi. Transcription will paste transcribed results from Word into Cerner and

validate accuracy.

x=vii. Nursing will document on paper forms for the duration of the downtime and
no data will be back entered into the system when the system comes back
online.

Bedside Medical Device Integration

Scheduled Downtime Preparation

i. Nursing Manager will ensure each patient has the appropriate unit specific
barcoded flow sheet.

ii. Nursing will retrieve all current BMDI clinical data 15 minute prior to the system
down time. Nursing is not required to disassociate the Devices during the
downtime.

Scheduled Downtime

i. If downtime is more than 4 hours; clinical data will be tracked on the unit specific
flow sheet for the duration for the current shift. If the downtime is less than 4 hours,
electronic documentation will be completed upon recovery of the system.

Scheduled Downtime Recovery

i. When back on-line, nursing will associate the newly admitted patients to the
appropriate devices in order to start data collection.

ii. When back on-line nursing will ensure patients are associated with the appropriate
devices. In the event the patient is not associated, nursing will reassociate to the
appropriate devices.

iii. H-the-downtime-is4-heurs-erlessr-ANursing must use Viewed Acquired Data to pull
in values and clinical data from the devices for their shift. Nursing must enter all
clinical documentation back into the system. Vital signs and all bedside monitoring
device data should be puiled into the EMR at the ordered interval (everyg15min,
1hour, etc).

iv. In the event the View Acquired Data is unavailable, nursing is to use unit specific
monltor hlstory to gather cllnlcal data to complete cllmcal documentatlon

vi-v. During the Recovery Phase nursing will instruct phyS|C|ans and all ancillary
departments where to locate the unit specific clinical documentation.

Unscheduled Downtime

i. Nursing will utilize the unit specific flow sheets until the system is back on-line or,
the duration of their shift.

Unscheduled Downtime Recovery

i. When back on-line, nursing will associate the newly admitted patients to the
appropriate devices in order to start data collection.

ii. When back on-line; nursing will ensure patients are associated with the
appropriate devices. In the event the patient is not associated, nursing will
reassociate to the appropriate devices.

iii. {-the-downtime-is4-hours-er-less;-rNursing must use Viewed Acquired Data to pull
in values and clinical data from the devices for the shift. Nursing must enter all
clinical documentation back into the system. Vital signs and all bedside monitoring
device data should be pulled into the EMR at the ordered interval (q15min, 1hr,
etc).

42



| Patient Care Services Palicy-Manaual

Cerner Downtime (IX-H)

Page 27 of 33 '
iv. In the event the View Acquired Data is unavailable, nursing is to use unit specific
monitor history to gather clinical data to complete clinical documentation.
| V. If downtime is greater than 4 hours, documentation will remain on paper for the
remainder of the shift and will be part of the permanent record.
| vi. During the Recovery Phase, nursing will instruct physicians and all ancillary

departments where to locate the unit specific clinical documentation.
g-f. BMDI Application Downtime
i. In the event the-BMDI (ibus servers) -application-is-are down and the ability to

chart in Cerner occurs 44%@45494&4@#%@3#@&%5996#&94%99%54@

asseeate4he44ewLy—aémﬁied—pahent&as—weH—a&eaesﬂng—panen¥s4e4he

appropriate-devices users will manually enter data from monitoring devices.

Once associated, nursing will reenter vital signs into IView based on the ordered

intervals.

| ii. If the downtime is greater than 4 hours nursing will continue documenting on the
unit specific flow sheet for the remainder of the shift. The paper flow sheet is
scanned down to HIM and placed in the patients chart as part of the permanent
EMR.

| iii. Once the BMDI application comes back up, nursing will associate all newly

admitted patients and existing patients to the appropriate devices. Nursing will

resume documentation of all BMDI clinical data into Cerner.

E. Electronic-FORMS-available-on-the-lntranet:
1. Downtime — Admission/Discharge/Transfer Log Sample
3-2. Downtime — Laboratory Cerner Log Sample
4.3. Downtime — Medication Administration Record Sample
54. Downtime — Surgery Add-On Profile Sheet Sample
6:5. Downtime — Universal Requisition Form (Sample Only, must use NCR)

43



Cerner Downtime (1X-H)

Page 28 of 33

| Patient Care Services Pelicy-Manual

Downtime - Admission/ Discharge/Transfers Log Sample

FUPRI

B eE IR T

MOIATAS LIAA0D oL  3WiL NOILIISO4SAU | diNiL | JMLL TAYN
NOLLVAOWINODIV WAISNVHL HAE4SNVHL | ADYVHISI od wav INTILYVI ALVA

SIDJSURL ], - SIBIBYISI(] — SHOISSIIPY

o smpuame(y »ndwo)

Lo

44



| Patient Care Services Peliey-Manual
Cerner Downtime (IX-H)
Page 29 of 33

Downtime - Laboratory Cerner Log Sample

TCMC LABORATORY CERNER DOWNTIME LOG
During Cerner downtime, use this form to log any future Lab specimens. If Cerner
is back on line hefore the scheduled test, use this log to enter the orders into
Cemaer. If Cerner is still down during any of these scheduled tests, make a manual
Universal Downtime Requisition and send to Lab. DO NOT SEND THIS LOG TO

LAB
PATIENT TESTS ORDER | ORDER | ORDEREDIN | REQ.SENT | uSERID
NAME DATE TIME COMPASS | TOLAB

45



| Patient Care Services Policy-Manual

Cerner Downtime (IX-H)

Page 30 of 33
Downtime - Medication Administration Record Sample
Patient Name: MRN: Allergies:
Unit: Room/Bed: Admission Date: Page of
Age: Sex: Height {cm): Weight (kg): Physician:
Reason for Visit Administration Period: ___ { {__from 000D - 2359
Start Time | Stop Time Day Shift Night Shift
Medication 0701 - 1901 -
Dose Route Frequency 1900 0700
Initials | Signature Site Codes-site, route & initial must be on injectables
Ant. Thigh Left=2 Ant. Thigh Right =1
Gluteal Region Left=4 Gluteal Region Right=3
Delioid Muscle Lefi=86 Deftoid Muscle Right= 5
Abdominal Lefi=8 Abhdominal Right=7
Omitted Dose Codes = Circle hours and reason
A-NPO B-NPO C-Patient D-Nausea E-Hold Dose F-Pt off Flaor G-Other (see
Diagnostic Surgery Refusal notes)
“Must chart doses in Powerchart when system retwins

@ TriCity Medical Center

4002 Vista Way » Oceanside - CA » 62050

I s

(Rey 8112)

46

Afin Patient Label




| Patient Care Services Relicy-Manual
Cerner Downtime (IX-H)
Page 31 of 33

_APD-ON PROFILE SHEET

Downtime — Surgery Add On Profile Sample

Date/Time Scheduled:

Datel/Time of Surgery:

| Add On #:

Patient and Procedure Information Read Back-by:

Patient:

_DboB: Age:

Location:

Procedure:

MR #:

NPO Status: ___

s

if procedure is craniotomyimass or hrain biopsy Use Neurosurgery Screening Tool

Diagnosis:

Assistant:

Surgeon’

Equipment/instrumants Needed;

Loaner InstTrays:

Expected Arrival.

Rep. Notified:

i

Positioning:

Cardiac/Medical Hx:

- SPD Notified: _

I

!’ Surgeon Availability:

ER/Floor/Pt Nurse notified:

Estimated OR Tima:
Pre-Op Notified: PACU Notified:
N X-Ray Tech Nofitied:
E-PRIV O FLUORO O ,
) C-Arm Fluoro;

Scheduled by:

In Computer: | | Yes:

P

L.

No:

Phone #

Out/n Patient Information

SS%:

Ingurance:

47



| Patient Care Services Relicy-Manual
Cerner Downtime (IX-H)
Page 32 of 33

ADD-ON PROFILE SHEET
Time Surgeon called OR to schedule case

Requested time for case

Time OR room is available

Pt already seen by Surgeon:; Yes
Time Patient seen by Surgeon:

No

Time Anesthesiologist is contacted /arrival time__

Time Pt's nurse contacted for handoff

Comments;

Time handoff report taken:

Time OR aide sent for Pt;

Time Pt arrived in OR suite:
Time Pt on OR table:

Time Surgeon contacted______ /Surgeon in OR room

Revised $-0215 Ig

48



| Patient Care Services Pslicy-Manual

Cerner Downtime (IX-H)
Page 33 of 33

Requesied by:
Date: _
Ordering Physician:

Downtime — Universal Requisition Form Sample

G 35079

Fhone:
Time:

Diagnosis / Reason for exam

Special Instructions g.c sresgy ¢ Isolaton ¢ impairsent | Work Gomp.):

PRIORITY TRANSPORTATION MODE
o STAT LI NOW ATMED QO WHEELCHAIR L} GURNEY
[:l ROUTINE L] PRE-OP {1 PORTABLE 3 eED
() SURGERY: DATE & TIME:
7] LABORATORY: MULTIPLE LAB TESTS CAN BC ORDERED [ADDITIONAL PROCEDURE / TEST
PER REQUISITION EXCEPT FOR MICROBIOLOGY J CARDIOLOGY () LCCG |1£CG
() GHEM 12 QCHEM 7 ") DIGOXIN L) FHYSICAL THERAPY
(1 TROPONIN (2 GPKICKMB T)eNe B gggé-’gm‘?ggk;:’EW‘W 0 PULMONARY
] MAGNESTUR ) POTASSIUM ,'_] GLUCOSE ) DIZTARY
;_I AMY up )} TOX SCREEN CIOTHER _ _
JACETA 1 SAL 1ALC Cl1OTHER
J ABG Q1 COMMENT
;! 86 :] CBCD D SED RATE 1 RADIOLOGY: Only 1 Radiology procedie per requisition,
JPT JPTT L3 FIBRINOGEN ] CXR Single View {Q CT Head & Caontrast
0 DDMER DUAWMICRO  QUCHF 1 Utrasound Abdomen 0} CT
UG £1 CXR Two Views L) MR
) Uttrasound Pelvic Q) Nuclear Medicing

3 NEQPANEL gnRPA 1 ABD Single O interventicnal Radiology
2 HBSAG 3 BLOOD cULTURE X1 CT Head / no contrast [ CT ABD) { Pevis-Cortrast
0 BILIRUBIN O RUBELLA "] ABD Acute BUN
{1 OTHER LABORATORY () GBS -] OTHER RADIOLOGY CR
) OTHER LABORATORY_ EXAM: S
] TRANSFUSION - FFP-PLATELETS- [ TYPE + SCREEN

CRYO-PRBC (0 BLOOD GROUP/AH
L1 TYPE = CROSS UNITS QJC+4 & SOQURCE
i3 GRAM STAIN SOURCE
iPerformed by o Date § Tire:
Ancillary Use Only
Procedure; BeginTme. End Tura., Examn Dore.
Toch tnitiads: Conwast: _ ~ Arcourt Resuilslo Floor: Callad Hardoopy:
Becovery Documentation: Enterad by: Date | Tme:

@ Tri-City Medical Center

4002 Vista Way ¢ Ocaanside « CA « 9205€

L L

. 1298}

REQUISITION FORM

49

- UNIVERSAL DOWNTIME

{To b2 ueed for immediala orders turing Downtime only}
Original - to Departiment (White}

Affix Pationt Labed

Capy -t Ordering Unit (Yollow)




f,')
(C‘» Tri-City Medical Center

Distribution: Patient Care Services

PROCEDURE:

CHEST TUBE MANAGEMENT

Purpose:

To define the nursing interventions for assisting with the insertion of chest tubes for the
adult and adolescent patients. To define nursing management of adult and adolescent
patients with chest tubes.

Supportive Data:

Closed chest drainage systems are used to facilitate the evacuation of fluid, blood, and
air from the pleural space, -e=the mediastinum or both; to restore negative pressure to
the pleural space; and promote reexpansion of a collapsed lung.

Mosby's Chest Tube Insertion Procedure

Mosby's Chest Tube: Closed Drainage System Procedure

Equipment: 1. One 250mLm-L} bottle of Normal Saline

2. Chest Tube Dressing Change Equipment
a. Silvasorb Gel or Povidone-lodine Ointment
b. 2-inch silk tape or micropore
d. Normal Saline
e. 4x4 gauze sponges
f. 4x4 gauze drainage sponges

3. Chest Tube Removal Kit
a. Suture removal kit
b. ChloraPrep (triple swabsticks)
c. Silvasorb Gel, Bacitracin Zinc, and Povidone-lodine ointment
d. 2 Kelly clamps
e. 4x4 gauze sponges (package of 10)
f. Chux
g. 2 zip holders
e. 1 large red bag

A. PROCEDURE:

1. Assisting with the Insertion of a Chest Tube
Place Chest Tube lnsertion Cart in patient’'s room.

a.

Set up chest drainage device (Refer to Mosby’s Chest- Tube: Closed Drainage
System Procedure Extended Text). See-resource-available-enintranetTeleflex
HlowEvaedasert

Assisting physician (Refer to Mosby's Chest Tube Insertion Procedure)

Ensure chest x-ray is completed per physician’s order.

3.2. Chest Tube Monitoring, Nursing Assessment and Care
a. Refer to Mosby's Chest-Tube Insertion Extended Text.
b. Ensure a Have-Chest Tube Removal Kit readily available in patient’s room-.
i. Attach Chest Tube Removal Kit to Intravenous (1V) pole on Telemetry, Acute
Care Services (ACS), and Forensics.
c. Secure chest drainage system to the IV pole using two zip holders. Silk tape may
be used to secure the drainage system. Ensure-chestiube-drainage-system-is
d. Monitor the amount and type/color of drainage per the physicians’ orders
e. Mark the collection chamber at the end of every shift and PRN with the dateand
timedate, time, and initials. Document the drainage amount in the medical record.
- e . . Medical Staff Medical Professional
Department Clinical Policies & | Nursing Executive . . Board of
eReview Procedures Committee Deﬁr\};;%r:‘t or gﬁ.ﬁxe c ::::{:ee Directoc:s
4/09; 5/12; 11/15 06/12, 12115 06/12, 01/16 n/a 10/12, 09/16 11112 12/12

50




Patient Care Services Procedure Manual

Chest Tube Management

Page 2 of 4

4:3.

e-g.

i,

j-

di. The amount of drainage within the first two hours after insertion may be
approximately 100 to 300 mL, tFhe amount of drainage should begin to
decrease over the next few hours and days.

Assess the patient as ordered after chest tube insertion. If no order for

assessment, assess as outlined in Mosby’s Chest Tube: Closed Drainage Systems

procedure.

Discuss with the physician and obtain an order to perform range of motion exercises

for shoulder on the side of the chest tube site to prevent frozen shoulder secondary to

immobility.r

i. Discuss the need for physical therapist assistance with the physician.

Ambulate patient per physician’s order.

i. If there is no order to ambulate ensure patients sits on the side of bed to
enhance ventilation, maximize lung inflation and improve gas exchange.

ii. Discuss the need for activity orders with physician.

Patient positioning:

i. Elevate head of the bed (HOB) 30 to 45 degrees or per physician’s order.

ii. Lobectomy and all other lung surgeries: position patient on the non-operative
side or per physician’s order.

iii. Pneumonectomy: position supine or on the operative side.

fi-iv. Reposition patient at least every two hours

incentive Spirometry (IS)

i. Ensure patient uses the IS as ordered.

Dressing Change: Chest Tube Insertion Site

a.

T @meaoo

Change chest tube insertion site dressing every other day and PRN, unless ordered
otherwise by physician.
Remove dressing and discard in appropriate receptacle.
Clean chest tube insertion site with normal saline applied to sterile 4x4 gauze sponge.
Pat insertion site dry with 4x4 gauze sponge.
Apply Silvasorb gel or follow physician’s order.
Anchor chest tube to patient’s skin.
Apply one to two 4x4 drain sponges underneath the chest tube and 1-2 on top of the
chest tube. Ensure chest tube is not kinked.
Apply two to three 4x4 gauze sponges on top drain sponges.
i j j Apply silk tape or micropore over 4 x 4 dressing. (Do
not use paper, form or elastoplast tape to secure chest tube dressing.)
Ensure drainage tubing is visible, not kinked, and properly positioned. Do not position or
secure drainage tubing behind patient’s back.
Do not reinforce chest tube dressing. If dressing becomes saturated or soiled:
i Remove dressing
ii. Assess connections
iii. Apply a new dressing
iv. Notify physician

Chest Tube Removal

a.
b.

Ensure a Chest Tube Removal Kit is readily available and assist physician as needed.
Monitor the patient for the following:
i. Obtain chest x-ray as ordered
ii. Ensure adequate respiratory status. Assess the following:

1) Breath sounds

2) Heart rate

$P3a) Monitor cardiac rhythm on Cardiac Monitoring Units

2)3) Respiratory rate and quality

3)4) Oxygen saturation

4)5)  Notify physician for abnormal findings

51



Patient Care Services Procedure Manual

Chest Tube Management
Page 3 of 4

iii. Monitor insertion site for bleeding. If bleeding is found, apply pressure and place
a tight occlusive dressing over site. Notify the physician for persistent bleeding.
(Persistent bleeding from the insertion site could mean the chest tube was
against a vein of the chest wall before removal.)

iv. Monitor suture site and surrounding skin. Notify physician for abnormalities such
as excessive redness, dark or inflamed skin with necrotic areas.

V. Monitor the site for signs of infection.

vi. Monitor insertion area for development of subcutaneous emphysema (Crepitus),
which is an indication of an air leak into the surrounding tissues.

vii. Monitor for signs and symptoms of pericardial effusion or cardiac tamponade. i.e.

distant heart tones, decreased blood pressure, tachycardia, pulsus paradoxus,
narrowed pulse pressure
viii. Assess pain and medicate per physician orders

6:5. Heimlich Chest Drain Valve

a.

The Heimlich Chest Drain Valve is used for uncomplicated pneumothorax with little or no

drainage. The valve allows air and fluid to pass in one direction.

There is a flutter valve which replaces an under water drainage bottle system.

Observe the flutter every shift and prR-PRN to ensure air is escaping from the pleural

space.

Never clamp, close the ends of the valve, or use an airtight dressing or rubber glove

over the valve.

i. if there is drainage from the valve, place gauze on the valve and secure with tape
ensuring not to occlude or cover valve.

Assess the patient’s vital signs including oxygen saturation and assess for signs of

respiratory distress. Notify physician of abnormal findings.

Ensure the proximal end of the valve is attached to the patient’s chest tube catheter

Ensure the distal end of the valve, if ordered, is attached to a drainage bag or regulated
suction.

Assess patient insertion site and surrounding skin. Notify the physician of abnormal
findings.

e Proximal connects
to the patient’s

Distal, can be
connected to
regulated,

intermittent suction
that can be used to
remove secretions

B. REFERENCES:

1. Becton, Dickinson & Company (2015) Helmllch valve. Retneved from
http://Iwww.bd.com/medical-surgical/products/heimlich.asp

52



Patient Care Services Procedure Manual
Chest Tube Management
Page 4 of 4

2. Elsevier:Mosby’s Nursing Skills. (2006-20145). Chest tube insertion.closed-drainage-system:
Retrieved-May-10-2012-ffrom Tri-City Medical Center interanat.

3. Elsevier: Mosby’s Nursing Skills. (2006-20145). Chest tube: Closed drainage device.-device:
Retrieved from Tri-City Medical Center Intranet Pleur-evac—Retrieved-March-20-2009from

hitn:/lapp32-webinservice-comiMosbySkills/skillsMain-asp
4, Teleflex Medical. (2009). Understanding chest drainage. Retrieved from
http://www.teleflex.com/en/usa/ucd/index.php
Med-nstrum—1983-Jan-Feb47{1):208-3+Retrieved-May-1~2042from
4.5. Urden, L.D., Stacy, K. M., & Lough, M. E. (2014). Critical care nursing. Diagnosis and Management.
(7" ed.). St. Louis, MO: Elsevier

53



Tracked Changes Copy

(c\) Tri-City Medical Center

Distribution: Patient Care Services

PROCEDURE: MISCARRIAGE AND STILLBIRTH IDENTIFICATION AND DISPOSITION PROCESS
DIREERENTAT N IFRA I TER MERETAPEN S S FROVIISCARRIAGE
Purpose: To outline the proper steps in differentiating between stillbirths (fetal death in utero at

equal to or greater than 20 weeks gestational age-demises) and miscarriages.

A sStililborn delivery requires the family to make disposition arrangements with a
mortuary/ funeral home and s requires an “autopsy permit” before it is evaluated by
the pathology departmentthey—a;e-evaluated If no autopsy is requested, the
stillbirth remain is taken to the hospital morgue.

A m|scarr|age dees-notrequire-a-permit-and-shall be handled as a routine surg|cal
specimen and be; sent to the histology department with a tissue specimen
requisition-

Supportive Data:

A fetus which satisfies any two of the following three criteria will be classified as a
stillbirth:
1. Foot length (heel to toe) greater than 3.1 centimeters millimeters

2. Crown-rump (CR) length: greater than 16.5 centimeters
3. Gestational age by dates: equal to or greater than 20 weeks
Equipment: 1. Personal protective equipment
2. Infant scale
3. Disposable measuring tape
4. Chux
5. Disposable drape
6. Specimen bag
7. Tissue lab slip
A DEFINITIONS:
1. MISCARRIAGE Pregnancy Ioss before 20 weeks gestatlon W|thout S|gns of Ilfe Refer to
depa#ment—as—refe#eneed—m the Ssupportlve Ddata sectlon above,
a. Hospital is responsible for the disposition of the remains which is usually by
incineration.
b. The Family may request to have remains taken to mortuary, but incur the
associated costs
2. STILLBIRTH: Fetal death occurs before the baby is born and after 20 reported weeks of
gestatlon Refer to the Supportlve Data sectlon above (-'Fhe—fetus—shews—n&s;gns-of-l#e-at
a. The family is responsible for coordinating the disposition of the fetal remains with
a funeral home.
b. A “fetal death certificate” is prepared by the birth clerk.
3. NEONATAL DEATH: The death of a newborn within the first 28 days of life. (Fetus is born
alive regardless of gestational age, but then dies within the first 28 days.)
a. The family is responsible for coordinating the disposition of the remains with a
funeral home.
b. A birth certificate is issued AND a “death certificate” is completed by the provider
verifying the death.
A-B. PROCEDURE:
1. Perform hand hygiene and don gloves.
b Clinical Nursir!g Do rantiaf | D arena o Medic_al Professional Board of
|| S | pois | esai | Cwmnee | Seimne | geme | AR | oeee

12/08, 06/11,
04/15

04/11, 05/15 04/11, 05/15 03/16 04/16 05/11, 04/16 06/11 06/11

24




Patient Care Services Procedure Manual
| Miscarriage and Stillbirth Identification and Disposition ProcessDifferentiating-tntrauterine-Fetal Demises-from-Miscarriages

Page 2 of 5

2,

5.

Complete measurements to determine if fetus is stillbirth or miscarriage. Criteria for
stillbirth require 2 or more of the following:

a. Foot Length (heel to big toe) : > greater than 3.1 centimeters (cm)

b. Crown- rump Length (head to buttocks): > greater than 16.5 cm

c. Gestational Age by dates: Equal to or > greater than 20 weeks

If the fetal parameterslmeasurements are determmed to be borderlme and-the-sinicands
nfider i on-b n-a-i1 e-and born;-the fetus

mustsheuld be sent to the Hlstology Iab for flnal determlnatlon of whether or not it is a

miscarriage or stillbirth.

a. The tissue requisition accompanying the fetus/specimen needs to include the
clinician’s anatomic measurements, gestational age by dates and “Borderline
Measurements” indicated.

b. The staff member transporting the specimen to the laboratory will stay until the

pathologist confirms the measurements and then returns to the department and

reports the result findmgs ) dlsposmon optlon can then—be dlscussed W|th the

i. If after hours, the charge nurse will arrange to have a second staff member
complete the measurements as a second validation.

Stillbirth
a. A stillbirth’s remains are transferred to the Morgue.

i. If pathological examination is desired, an autopsy permit must be obtained
and the Histology department notified of this request.

ii. Staff in the ED and L&D unit the Family-shall ensurecomplete the Rrelease
of the Ddeceased fForm; if-possible-is updated and has the required patient
signature before discharge. And-tThe form will be given to the charge
nurse for final rewew, then form forwarded to the Admmlstratlve
Supervnsor el s HE-E : z

il The fetal remains will only be released to a designated mortuary.

Miscarriage:
a. If the fetus fails to meet at least two of the stillbirth measurement criteria, it is

considered a miscarriage and shall be taken to the lab for processmg
i. The tissue requisition form that accompanies the specimen to the
Histology department shall have the anatomic measurements, gestational
age and suspected diagnosis indicated by the attending provider.
1) The fetus will be processed by the Hhistology department as a
surgical pathology specimen
i If the family desires to make arrangements for the miscarriage remains
disposition with a mortuary or funeral home this MUST be indicated on the
tissue requisition form: “DO NOT PROCESS,HOLD-SPECIMEN,; FAMILY
DESIRES DISPOSITION*
1) Staff in Emergency Department/Labor & Deleivery/Post Anesthesia
Care Unit Family shall complete the “Authority for Miscarriage
Remains Release” Ddisposition-of-miscarriage-form; if-pessible;
before discharge and the charge nurse will forward form to the

Administrative Supervisor (AS)patientrelations-patient-advocate
office—(Nursing-supervisor-if-after-normal- work-hours).

2) The ASpatientrelations-patient-advocate-office will communicate
with the family no less than weekly to updatedetermine funeral
home/mortuary arrangements.

55



Patient Care Services Procedure Manual

| Miscarriage and Stillbirth Identification and Disposition Processbifferentiating-Intrauterine-Fetal- Demises-from-Miscarriages
Page 3of 5

3) Once arrangements are made by the family, the ASpatientrelations

representative will notify the Histology Department—
4) so-The Laboratory staff will transfer the remains can-be-transferred

from-the-lab to the morgue-foreventual-disposition.

a) The remains fetus will only be released to a designated
mortuary.

5) If arrangements for disposition are not made by the family within 30
days, the AS will notify the Histology department towill dispose of
the remains by incineration based on Health and Safety Code
7054.3.

a) Reasonable efforts will be made by the ASpat-ient—Felatiens
efﬁce to contact the famlly before the deadlme is reached

76. Documentation;

RA



Patient Care Services Procedure Manual

| Miscarriage and Stillbirth Identification and Disposition ProcessDifferentiating-lnirauterine-Fetal-Demises-from-Miscarriages i
Page 4 of §

G:E.

a. Document the date and time of the miscarriage/ delivery date-time as a clinical note

sent. ~weight; Jtaene s bo D3 6a cord-
b. AThe stillborn infant-will requires a fetal death certificate to be completed by the Birth
Clerk-and-is-sent-te-the-morgue.
C. A miscarriage will-requires a tissue requisition and is sent to the histology department
in the lab.

TECHNICAL NOTES:

1.

Health and Safety Code 7054 states that, “(a) Except as authorized pursuant to the sections
referred to in subdivision (b), every person who deposits or disposes of any human remains in
any place, except in a cemetery, is guilty of a misdemeanor.

Health and Safety Code 7054.3 states that, “Notwithstanding any other provision of law, a
recognizable dead human fetus of less than 20 weeks uterogestation not disposed of by
interment shall be disposed of by incineration.”

Penal Code 643 states that “No person knowingly shall dispose of fetal remains in a public or
private dump, refuse, or disposal site or place open to public view. For the purposes of this
section, ‘fetal remains’ means the lifeless product of conception regardiess of the duration of the
pregnancy. Any violation of this section is a misdemeanor.”

FORM(S)/RELATED DOCUMENT(S):

1. Authority for Miscarriage Remains Release Sample

REFERENCES:

1. TCMC Pathology Department — Histology Policy and Procedure Manual.

2. Mattson, S., & Smith, J.E. (2011). Core-curriculum to maternal-newborn nursing. (4" Ed.).
Philadelphia: Saunders.

3. California Health and Safety Code Section 7050.0-7055

4, California Penal Code Section 643

5 California Perinatal Quality Care Collaborative (CPQCC) Network Database, version 1.10.
(11/09/2010). Manual of definitions for infants born in 2010. Retrieved on 12/28/2010:
http://www.cpgcc.org/data/cpgcc _downloads

0. epte or-Medi s-aha-ide dicaid-Servic

R7



Patient Care Services Procedure Manual

Miscarriage and Stiflbirth Identification and Disposition Processbifferentiating-irtrauterine-Fetal- Demises-from-Miscarriages
Page 5 of 5

Authority for Miscarriage Remains Release Sample

A miscamage is vakdated when the Estmated Gestafional Age (EGA) is less than 20 weeks andlar when the haad to
buttocks length is jogs than 16.8 cm and the heet to toe length is tess than 3.1 em per Patient Care Servicas Miscamage
and Stiiibirth Identification and Disposition Process Procedure.

Do the pragnancy remalns meet miscarriage criteria?
YES Please transfer the miscarriege remains to the Laboralory and review disposition options below.

Nurse Name ) Date Provider Name Date,

Please be advised that you have choices conceming the final disposition of miscarriage remains, if desired.
HOSPITAL DISPOSITION

According to regulations, the hospital will dispase of tha miscarriage under the terms and conditions customarily used.

The hospital cannot return the remains io you.

| wish for Tri-City Medical Center to arenge for the disposition of remains under the terms and condifions customarily

usad.
Patient Signature Date
ARRANG
if you would fike to make altemate arrangemenis, the remains must be released to an approved agency for proper butlal
or cremalion by a licensed funeral diractor or mortuary. PLEASE READ and INITIAL the fems E '

1. | wish to make arrangements with e licensed funeral director or mortuary and understand that | am responsible for all
expenses. YES

2. lunderstand that if arengements are not made with a funeral home/mortuary within 30 days, the Laborstory
Department will dispose of he remains under the terms and conditions customarily used by e hospital. YES

3. Due to regulatory guidelines, thera may be reasans the remains may not be able to be relegsed. YES

I hereby authotize Tri-City Medical Center to release the remains to:
Palient

To: —— : { }
MontuaryiProcurement Apency Arza Code/Phens Nuwmbar

Data Signature Ares Cadel Phane Emall addross
Murnbsr
NMortuary Notifled: Date Time Initials
Mo ! [ OF

Received from TRI-CITY MEDICAL CENTER, the pregnancy ramains from, (Name)

{Dale) (Time) {Signature of Mortuary Transpater)
Releesad By: __ Date: Tima:
Public Admingstrator Netifled, 7 Data: Timo: Inltisls
Affix Patient
‘@ Tri-City Medical Center

4002 Vista Way - Oceanside - CA - 52056
AUTHORITY FOR MISCARRIAGE REMAINS

1L

Wide Medcs) Recond Mg (4) copies (1] Patam, (2) Admiisyaiue Supendsor (3} Labaratory {4) Mortusry

GBR



Clean Copy

@‘9 Tri-City Medical Center

Distribution: Patient Care Services

PROCEDURE:

MISCARRIAGE AND STILLBIRTH IDENTIFICATION AND DISPOSITION PROCESS

Purpose:

To outline the proper steps in differentiating between stillbirth (fetal death in utero at
equal to or greater than 20 weeks gestational age) and miscarriage.

A stillborn delivery requires the family to make disposition arrangements with a mortuary/
funeral home and requires an “autopsy permit” before it is evaluated by the pathology
department. If no autopsy is requested, the stillbirth is taken to the hospital morgue.

A miscarriage shall be handled as a routine surgical specimen and be sent to the
histology department with a tissue specimen requisition

Supportive Data:

A fetus which satisfies any two of the following three criteria will be classified as a
stillbirth:

Foot length (heel to toe) greater than 3.1 centimeters

Crown-rump (CR) length: greater than 16.5 centimeters

Gestational age by dates: equal to or greater than 20 weeks

Equipment:

Personal protective equipment
Infant scale

Disposable measuring tape
Chux

Disposable drape

Specimen bag

Tissue lab slip

NoOOAWN2ON =

A. DEFINITIONS:

1.

MISCARRIAGE: Pregnancy loss before 20 weeks gestation without signs of life. Referto the
Supportive Data section above,

a. Hospital is responsible for the disposition of the remains which is usually by incineration.
b. The Family may request to have remains taken to mortuary, but incur the associated
costs

STILLBIRTH: Fetal death occurs before the baby is born and after 20 reported weeks of

gestation. Refer to the Supportive Data section above.

a. The family is responsible for coordinating the disposition of the fetal remains with a
funeral home.

b. A “fetal death certificate” is prepared by the birth clerk.

NEONATAL DEATH: The death of a newborn within the first 28 days of life. (Fetus is born alive

regardless of gestational age, but then dies within the first 28 days.)

a. The family is responsible for coordinating the disposition of the remains with a funeral
home.

b. A birth certificate is issued AND a death certificate is completed by the provider verifying
the death.

B. PROCEDURE:

1. Perform hand hygiene and don gloves.
2. Complete measurements to determine if fetus is stillbirth or miscarriage. Criteria for stillbirth
require 2 or more of the following:
a. Foot Length (heel to big toe) : > greater than 3.1 centimeters (cm)
b. Crown- rump Length (head to buttocks): > greater than 16.5 cm
c. Gestational Age by dates: Equal to or > greater than 20 weeks
3. If the fetal parameters/measurements are determined to be borderline, the fetus must be sent to
the Histology lab for final determination of whether or not it is a miscarriage or stillbirth.
isio Cljnical Nursiqg Department of | Department of Medical Professional Board of
Towme | gl | emute | Tden | oeenm | SRS | oSS | AR
12108, 0811, | oaj11,05115 | 04/11,08/15 03/16 04/16 05/11, 04/16 06/11 06/11

RQ




Patient Care Services Procedure Manual
Miscarriage and Stillbirth Identification and Disposition Process
Page 2 of 4

C.

a. The tissue requisition accompanying the fetus/specimen needs to include the anatomic
measurements, gestational age by dates and Borderline Measurements indicated.

b. The staff member transporting the specimen to the laboratory will stay until the
pathologist confirms the measurements and then returns to the department and reports
the result findings so disposition option can be discussed with the family.

i.

4. Stillbirth

If after hours, the charge nurse will arrange to have a second staff member
complete the measurements as a second validation.

a. A stillbirth’s remains are transferred to the Morgue.

iii.
5. Miscarriage:

If pathological examination is desired, an autopsy permit must be obtained and
the Histology department notified of this request.

Staff in the ED and L&D unit shall ensure the Release of the Deceased Form is
updated and has the required patient signature before discharge. The form will
be given to the charge nurse for final review, then forwarded to the
Administrative Supervisor.

The fetal remains will only be released to a designated mortuary.

a. If the fetus fails to meet at least two of the stillbirth measurement criteria, it is considered
a miscarriage and shall be taken to the lab for processing.

The tissue requisition form that accompanies the specimen to the Histology
department shall have the anatomic measurements, gestational age and
suspected diagnosis indicated by the attending provider.

1) The fetus will be processed by the Histology department as a surgical
pathology specimen

If the family desires to make arrangements for the miscarriage remains

disposition with a mortuary or funeral home this MUST be indicated on the tissue

requisition form: DO NOT PROCESS, FAMILY DESIRES DISPOSITION

1) Staff in Emergency Department/Labor & Deleivery/Post Anesthesia Care
Unit shall complete the Authority for Miscarriage Remains Release form
before discharge and the charge nurse will forward form to the
Administrative Supervisor (AS).

2) The AS will communicate with the family no less than weekly to update
funeral home/mortuary arrangements.

3) Once arrangements are made by the family, the AS will notify the
Histology Department.

4) The Laboratory staff will transfer the remains to the morgue.

a) The remains will only be released to a designated mortuary.

5) If arrangements for disposition are not made by the family within 30 days,
the AS will notify the Histology department to dispose of the remains by
incineration based on Health and Safety Code 7054.3.

a) Reasonable efforts will be made by the AS to contact the family
before the deadline is reached.

6. Documentation:
a. Document the date and time of the miscarriage/ delivery as a clinical note entry in the
patient’s electronic health record and indicate where the remains were sent.
b. A stillborn requires a fetal death certificate to be completed by the Birth Clerk.
c. A miscarriage requires a tissue requisition and is sent to the histology department in the

lab.

TECHNICAL NOTES:

AN



Patient Care Services Procedure Manual
Miscarriage and Stillbirth Identification and Disposition Process

Page 3 of 4

1.

Health and Safety Code 7054 states that, “(a) Except as authorized pursuant to the sections
referred to in subdivision (b), every person who deposits or disposes of any human remains in
any place, except in a cemetery, is guilty of a misdemeanor.

Health and Safety Code 7054.3 states that, “Notwithstanding any other provision of law, a
recognizable dead human fetus of less than 20 weeks uterogestation not disposed of by
interment shall be disposed of by incineration.”

Penal Code 643 states that “No person knowingly shall dispose of fetal remains in a public or
private dump, refuse, or disposal site or place open to public view. For the purposes of this
section, fetal remains’ means the lifeless product of conception regardless of the duration of the
pregnancy. Any violation of this section is a misdemeanor.”

D. FORM(S)RELATED DOCUMENT(S):

1.

Authority for Miscarriage Remains Release Sample

E. REFERENCES:

1.
2.

3.
4.
5

TCMC Pathology Department — Histology Policy and Procedure Manual.

Mattson, S., & Smith, J.E. (2011). Core-curriculum to maternal-newborn nursing.(4" Ed.).
Philadelphia: Saunders.

California Health and Safety Code Section 7050.0-7055

California Penal Code Section 643

California Perinatal Quality Care Collaborative (CPQCC) Network Database, version 1.10.
(11/09/2010). Manual of definitions for infants born in 2010. Retrieved on 12/28/2010:
http://www.cpqcc.org/data/cpgcc downloads

R1



Patient Care Services Procedure Manual
Miscarriage and Stillbirth identification and Disposition Process
Page 4 of 4

Authority for Miscarriage Remains Release Sample

A miscariage is vabdated when the Estimated Gestabonal Age (EGA) is less than 20 weeks aridiar when tha head 1o
buttseks length Is [egs than 16.8 cm and the hesl totoe tength is tess than 3.4 cm per Patient Care Services Miscamiage
and Stillbirth ldentfication and Disposition Process Procedure.

Do the pragnancy remains mest miscartiege criteria?
YES Please transfer ihe miscamiage remains to the Laboralory and review disposition options below,

fursa Name, . Dats Providar Name Dats

Please be advised that you have choices conceming the final disposttion of miscarriage remains, if desired,

HOSPITAL DISPOSITION
According to regulations, the hospital will disposa of the miscarriage under the terms and conditions customarily used.
The hospital cannoct retum the remains to you.

| wish for Tri-City Medical Center to errange for the disposition of remaling under the terms and conditions custamarily
usad.
Patient Signature Date

ARRANG
if you would Fike to make gllemate arrangements, the remains m
or cremation by a licensed funeral diractor of mortuary. PLEASE

ust be released to an approved agency for proper burlal
- (154

[S=ALY 810 ftems BELU

1. | wish to make arrangements with & ticensed funeral director or mortuary and understand that | am responsible for all
expenses. YES___

2. funderstand that if srrengements are not made with a funeral home/mortuary within 30 days, the Laboretory
Depariment will dispose of the ramains under the terms and conditions customarily used by the hospital. YES,

3. Due to regulatory guidelines, thera may be reasans the remains may not be able to be relegsed. YES

I hereby authorize Tri-City Medical Center to release the remains to:
Patient

To; {

_—— )
MortuaryiProcurement Agency Araa Coda/Phons Numbar

Dats Signeture Ares Coded Phane Email addrass
Number

fortuary Notifled: Date Tima Initials

MORTICIAN'S RECEIP
Received from TRI-CITY MEDICAL CENTER, the pragnancy remains from, (Name)

{Dais) (Time) (Signatire of Moruary Transportor)
Released By: Date: Tima:
Public Administrator Notifled: ___ Data: Time: Inltials
_ Affix Patent
@ micity Medical Center

4002 Vista Way - Ocesnaide - CA « 52055
. AUTHORITY FOR MISCARRIAGE REMAINS

L

While: Sedica] Recomd  AVaie (4) copies (1] Paant, {2) Adminststvn Scpeedscr (3) Laboratury {4) Morksery

gD



)
(C“? Tri-City Medical Center

Oceanside, California

PATIENT CARE SERVICES
STANDARIZED PROCEDURES-MANUAL

STANDARDIZED PROCEDURE: DISCHARGE FROM OUTPATIENT POST-ANESTHESIA SERVICE

l. POLICY:

Function: To provide a timely and appropriate discharge of the stable patient from Post
Anesthesia Care Unit (PACU).

A.

B. Circumstances:

1. Setting: PACU

2. Supervision: None required

3. Physicians Orders: The physician orders must clearly reflect an Rregistered Nrurse
(RN) may discharge a patient when discharge criteria have been met.

4, Patient Contraindications: The anesthesiologist is to be notified of any patient who does
not meet discharge criteria within four hours of admission post procedure, or any patient
who has hemodynamic instability, surgical complications or fails to respond to
treatment/interventions.

Il. PROCEDURE:
A A patient will be ready for discharge -as determined by the following criteria:
1. Airway:
a. Intact airway protective reflexes
b. Patent airway (no sign of airway obstruction and no need for airway support)

2. Ventilation/Oxygenation:

a. Respiratory rate greater than or equal to 210 per minute/adult, age appropriate
for pediatric patient

3. Cardiovascular:

a. Blood pressure, heart rate, cardiac rhythm within patient’s acceptable baseline
parameters, and temperature greater than 36°C (96.8°F)
b. Stable, no significant changes for at least 30 minutes
4, General Condition:
a. Awake and follows commands per baseline
b. Adequate intake and output, able to take oral fluids
C. Comfort level meets target pain level

5. Vomiting controlled and/or patient able to tolerate present state of nausea

6. Ambulation
a. Motor function/mobility progressing toward optimal level
b. Demonstrates understanding of assistive devices as appropriate

7. Post-procedural/operative bleeding controlled

8. Psychosocial issues identified and addressed

9. Provision made for safe transport home

10. Discharge from PACU with a Modified Aldrete score of 9 — 10 or per physician written
orders.

11. Last set of vital signs documented immediately before discharge.

Hi. PROCESS:
Clinical Nursing e v Medical Professional
Deparfment 3w iv Pharmacy Department of Interdlscl_plmary = = B_oard of
Review Pl:rgl‘;g':;:s CE:::I:':Ilitt'teee Ther:::utics Anesthesiology Committee g:;(::ittléee c :nfxf::i:e S Directors
02;//?)%;3%’%; 02/3 ! “7;13 03/1 O1 ;7)17;13 09/15 o o4/:] t ;/2%/13, 611 ;}%13, 6/11:40/13
07/13; 4115 '

9




| Patient Care ServicesSiandardized-Prosedure-Manual
Standardized Procedure: Discharge from Outpatient Post-Anesthesia Nursing Service
Page 2 of 2

V.

V.

VI.

A. Discharge

1. When the patient meets the above criteria, initiate standardized procedure as
appropriate.
2. Prepare patient or responsible party by reviewing patient education.
a. Patient care provider verbalizes understanding of all discharge instructions.
b. Written discharge instructions will be signed by the accompanying responsible
adult and a copy provided upon discharge.
C. Questions by patient/responsible adult invited and answered.
3. Foliow-up
a. Post-Op phone call made the following day by RN
4. Document in the patient’'s medical record
a. Goals/outcomes met
i. Deviations from expected outcomes to be documented on nursing record
b. Patient education
C. Follow-up phone call including any unexpected effects along with RNs
instructions to patient or support person. -QRR—eempLeted—when—applmabl&
d. RN signature completed on all physicianMB orders and nursing documentation.

e. Comp|et|on of Patlent Charge document

é?f. D|scharge in Cerner

REQUIREMENTS FOR CLINICIANS INITIATING STANDARDIZED PROCEDURE:

A A current California RN license.

B A current Advanced Cardiac Life Support (ACLS) certification

C. Initial Evaluation: During orientation period to include a nursing competency check-off list on
D

D

discharge criteria.
Ongoing Evaluation: Annually through skills lab.

EVELOPMENT AND APPROVAL OF THE STANDARDIZED PROCEDURE:

Method: This standardized procedure was developed through collaboration with nursing,
medicine, and administration.
Review: Every two (2) years.

A

B

CLINICIANS AUTHORIZED TO PERFORM THIS STANDARDIZED PROCEDURE:

A All RN's who have successfully completed requirements as outlined above are authorized to
direct and perform Discharge from Outpatient Post-Anesthesia Nursing Service Standardized
Procedure.

RA



@‘9 Tri-City Medical Center

Oceanside, California

STANDARDIZED PROCEDURES MANUAL

STANDARDIZED PROCEDURE: HALOPERIDOL (HALDOL), INTRAVENOUS (IV) ADMINISTRATION

I POLICY:
Function: To provide direction for the use of intravenously administered Haloperidol at Tri-City
Medical Center (TCMC).

A

B. Circumstances:
1. Setting: Emergency Department (ED), Intensive Care Unit (ICU), or Telemetry at TCMC
2. Supervision: None
C. Definitions:
1. The safe IV administration of haloperidol requires that the QTc interval on the 12 Lead
electrocardiogram (ECG) be less than 450 milliseconds.
2. The safe IV administration of haloperido! requires that the patient be monitored
continuously for cardiac dysrhythmias for two (2) hours after the drug is given.
3. The maximum drug amount for each IV dose of haloperido} is Smg.
4. The maximum cumulative drug amount for IV haloperidol dosing is 30mg per 24 hours.
5 QT interval represents the duration of ventricular depolarization and subsequent
repolarization measured from the beginning of the QRS complex to the end of the T
wave using manual or electronic calipers
6. QTc interval is a heart rate adjustment measurement for the QT interval. It is measured
using a calculation and is not the same measurement as the QT interval.
i Nursing shall use the QTc interval listed on a 12 Lead ECG.
D. Exceptions:
1. Haloperidol IV may be given in emergent situations to patients without a 12-lead ECGif
the ordering physician determines the benefit to outweigh the risk of treatment.
Il. PROCEDURE:
A. The attending physician initiates the process by ordering IV haloperidol for the patient.
B. The Registered Nurse (RN) shall check the chart for the most recent 12 Lead ECG.
1. RN shall order a base line 12 Lead ECG if:
i There is not an ECG that was done within the past 24 hours available on the
chart.
ii. Patient at risk for prolonged QT intervals:
a) Atrioventricular (AV) blocks
b) History of Torsades de Pointes (TdP)
c) Long QT Syndrome
d) History of Myocardial Infarction (M)
iii. When recommended by pharmacy based on drug interaction that prolongs the
QT interval.
iv. When the QT interval on an ECG strip measured with calipers, prolongs
exceeding the patient’s baseline and/or exceeds 450 milliseconds
2. Patients receiving 30 mg or more of haloperidol |V per day, order a 12 lead every other
day, if not ordered by the physician to monitor the QTc.
C. The RN or physician shall check the QTc interval that is electronically measured and printed on
the 12 Lead ECG.
1. Do not administer haloperidol if the QTc interval is greater than 450 milliseconds.
Cliical Niki2e Divisionof | PhamMacy | |peergisciplina Medical | Professional | g,
“Eovew | polces | Ecuive | QUGS | iy, | "Sonmie | Sece | A, | oo
7112, 915 8/12,10/15 | 10/12, 10115 01/16 11/12, 0116 | 02/13,07116 | 2/13,09/16 2113

AR



Standardized Procedure Manual
Standardized Procedure: Haloperidol, Intravenous (IV) Administration

Page 2 of 2

Discontinue the haloperidol and notify the physician for an alternative route or

medication.

2. If the physician specifically orders haloperidol despite QTc greater than 450
milliseconds, document QTc and physician awareness of QTc.

D. The RN shall document the QTc interval on the medication administration record (MAR).
E. The patient shall be monitored for the following for 2 hours after haloperidol has been
administered:

1. Cardiac effects (new onset tachycardia, orthostatic hypotension, hypertension,
abnormal T waves, prolongation of the QT from baseline and ventricular
dysrhythmias)

2. Signs of neuroleptic malignant syndrome (new fever greater than 37.7 celsius,
tachycardia, diaphoresis, labile blood pressure, cardiac dysrhythmias)

3. Extrapyramidal reactions, including:

i. Dystonic reactions (neck rigidity, swollen tongue, and oculogyric crisis)

ii. Tardive dyskinesia (repetitive, involuntary, purposeless movements, grimacing,
tongue protrusion, lip smacking, puckering and pursing, rapid eye blinking, rapid
movements of the arms, legs, and trunk may also occur. Involuntary movements
of the fingers may appear as though the patient is playing an invisible guitar or
piano.)

F. Physician Notification and Documentation

1. Notify the physician and document n the medical record the presence of the
following:

i. Cardiac effects

ii. Signs of neuroleptic malignant syndrome

iii. Extrapyramidal reactions

2. When administering medications or implementing orders from a standardized

procedure, the RN shall enter the medication/order into the electronic health
record as a standardized procedure.
i. Not required if a screening process triggers the order.

Il REQUIREMENTS FOR CLINICIANS INITIATING STANDARDIZED PROCEDURE:

A Current California RN license.

B Current Advanced Cardiac Life Support card.
Primary RN staff on with continuous cardiac monitoring at TCMC.ri-Gity-Medical-Genter-
Initial Evaluation: During Department Orientation.

Ongoing Evaluation: Annually during Skills Lab.

Medicine, and Administration.
Review: Every two (2) years.

LINICIANS AUTHORIZED TO PERFORM THIS STANDARDIZED PROCEDURE:

C.

D.

E.

DEVELOPMENT AND APPROVAL OF THE STANDARDIZED PROCEDURE:

A. Method: This Standardized Procedure was developed through collaboration with Nursing,
B.

c

A

All RNsegistered-Nurses who have successfully completing the-requirements as outlined above
are authorized to direct and perform Haloperidol, Intravenous (IV) Administration Standardized
Procedure.

ce



(c\) Trl_th Medical Center Distribution: Patient Care Services

PROCEDURE: HAZARDOUS DRUGS

Purpose: To ensure the safety of our employees/patients during the administration and patient
care of those receiving hazardous drugs within Tri-City Medical Center (TCMC)

Supportive Data: National Institute of Occupational Safety and Health (NIOSH) and Center for Disease
Control (CDC)

Equipment: Cytotoxic bin, yellow chemo waste bags, N-95 mask, double gloves, gown, splash
goggles or face shield, protective shoe covers

A. DEFINITION:

1. Hazardous drugs are drugs known to cause:
a. Genotoxicity — the ability to cause a change or mutation in genetic material
b. Carcinogenicity — the ability to cause cancer in animal models, humans or both
C. Teratogenicity — the ability to cause defects on fetal development or fetal malformation

2. Hazardous drugs are known to have the potential to cause fertility impairment, which is a major
concern for most clinicians.

3. These hazardous drugs can be classified as antineoplastic, cytotoxic agents, biologic agents,
antiviral agents and immunosuppressive agents.

4, Safe handling of hazardous drugs is crucial for both the patient and the provider.

B. POLICY:
1. TCMC staff working with hazardous drugs and the body fluids of patients receiving these drugs
| shall adhere to this procedure and reference Patient Care Services (PCS) Procedure: Disposal
of Chemotherapy Waste.
a. Body fluids include sweat, saliva, emesis, urine, feces, semen, vaginal fluid, or blood.
2. Only a TCMC trained registered nurse (RN) may administer a hazardous drug. Training consists
of:
l a. Completion of the initial Net-Learning “Administering a Hazardous Drug” module

C. PROCEDURE:
1. Administering a Hazardous Drug
a. Hazardous drugs will be identified by pharmacy and a warning will be placed in both the
medication Pyxis and the electronic medical record (eMAR) to alert the nurse. See
Hazardous Drug List.

b. Ensure a yellow puncture-proof cytotoxic waste container is available on the unit (i.e.,
medication room or designated area).

c. Hazardous drugs may not be handled with bare hands.
i. Always double glove prior to handling a hazardous drug and its packaging.

d. Never score or crush hazardous drugs (prevents inhalation of the drug.)

e. Notify pharmacy if a hazardous drug must be administered via gastric tube (i.e.
nasogastric or oral gastric small bore feeding tube).

f. Document all hazardous drug patient education in the Education All Topics Ad-hoc form
under “Medication Topics.”

2. Hazardous Drug Disposal and Waste
a. Dispose the following in a yellow puncture proof cytotoxic waste container:

i. Needles and syringes used when administering hazardous drugs
ii. Non-sharp materials exposed to a hazardous drug (i.e. pill packaging, IV
tubing/empty IV bags, and gloves)

Clinical " . 1
Nursing Medical Staff Pharmacy & Medical Professional

Deg ar:ment Ppogz?:r:s Executive Department/ | Therapeutics Executive Affairs g_o a;‘: of

eview e Council Division Committee Committee Committee maciors

Committee
08/10,

02/11;3/12, 3/12, 7116 3112, 07/16 nl/a 09/16 4/12, 09/16 512 5/12

6/16




| Patient Care Services Procedure-Manual

Hazardous Drugs
Page 2 of 4

b.

iii. Hazardous drugs in a pill form that have been contaminated or just need to be
wasted

Notify environmental services (EVS) when any yeliow puncture proof cytotoxic waste

container is 342/3 full.

3. Preventing Exposure to Body Fluid and Contaminated Linen

| a.
b.

Precautions must be taken during administration and until 48 hours after last dose.

Wear appropriate personal protective equipment (PPE) which may include the following:

i. N-95 mask

ii. Double gloves

iii. Gown

iv. Splash goggles or face shield

V. Protective shoe covers

Disposing of body fluid

i. Dispose of body fluids in the toilet

ii. DO NOT USE THE TOILET SPRAYER. Rinse containers with a cup of water to
prevent splashing.

iii. Before flushing toilet, cover open toilet with new chux. (New-chux-te-be-used-with

iv. Flush toilet twice, and discard chux. (New chux to be used with each flush).

V. Place PPE and chux in chemotherapy waste bag.

vi. Non-Oncology units contact EVS to dispose of chemo waste bag when they
become2/3-34-of the way full.

vii. Oncology unit will place sealed chemo waste bag in the designated chemotherapy
waste area on the unit.

All linen exposed to a hazardous drug or body fluid of a patient that is currently receiving

or has received agents in the past 48 hours, must be placed (using gown and double

gloved) in a yellow chemotherapy waste bag and tagged by the EVS with a “Special

Handling Ticket” before adding it to the general hospital linen.

Skin care of incontinent adult receiving hazardous drugs.

i. Clean patients skin after voiding or having a bowel movement.

ii. Apply protective barrier ointment or cream before diapering.

All disposable equipment (i.e. foley catheter, bedpan, graduated cylinder, and diapers)

used in caring for these patients must be disposed of in a chemotherapy waste container

and placed in the designated chemotherapy waste area on the unit.

4., Exposures and Prevention Related to Hazardous Drugs and Contaminated Body Fluids

a.

b.

C.

In the event of skin exposure to a hazardous drug, remove any contaminated garment and

immediately wash contaminated skin with soap and water.

In case of eye exposure, immediately flush the eye with saline solution or water for at

least 5 minutes.

All linen exposed to a hazardous drug or body fluid of a patient currently receiving (or

received) agents in the past 48 hours, must be placed (using gown and double gloved) in

a yellow chemotherapy waste bag and tagged by the EVS with a “Special Handling Ticket”

before adding it to the general hospital linen.

i. Contact EVS when chemo waste linen bag is 342/3 full. EVS will place the chemo
waste linen bag in a regular hospital blue linen bag and will place a special
handling ticket on the outside of the biue linen bag before it can be placed in the
general hospital linen.

Place any disposable contaminated materials into a sealed, leak proof chemo waste

plastic bag. Use the yellow puncture proof cytotoxic containers for sharps or breakable

items.

All containers will be clearly labeled citing the hazardous nature of the contents.

Report any exposures or spills to your Assistant Nurse Manager/Relief Charge

Nurse/supervisor.



| Patient Care Services Procedure-Manual
Hazardous Drugs

Page 3 of 4

g. Report any employee exposure to employee health services and/or emergency
department.

h. Complete an lliness/Injury Investigation Report.

i. Report patient exposures to the patient’s healthcare provider and per institution policy.

5. Handling of Hazardous Drugs — Pharmacy Department

a. All storage bins will be labeled with a “Hazardous Drug” sticker.

b. Use chemo gloves when handling hazardous drugs for:
i. Unit dosing
ii. Admixing
iii. Preparing for feeding tube
iv. If the packaging is not intact

C. Any hazardous drug sent from the pharmacy (not dispensed from Pyxis) will have a
“Hazardous Drug” label attached.

d. Admixing and crushing of hazardous drugs will be done in the chemo hood. The chemo
closed system is not necessary.

e. All hazardous drugs will have warnings on the eMAR and the Pyxis system.

f. All vials, bottles, packaging, syringes, etc. will be disposed of in the trace

chemotherapeutic waste container.

D. RELATED DOCUMENTS:
1. PCS Procedure: Disposal of Chemotherapy Waste
2. Hazardous Drug List

E. REFERENCES:

1. Health Waste Management (HCWM). (2006). The 10 categories of hcrw-#9 genotoxic/cytotoxic
waste.
2. National Institute for Occupational Safety and Health. (2004). Preventing occupational exposure

to antineoplastic and other hazardous drugs in health care settings. Retrieved-Nevemberi7;
zgw#em-the—NJfQSH—webs#e—at—http //www cdc qov/nlosh/docs/2004-165/#c




“SUONOa.IP |BSOdSIP JO) SIUBLILLIOD JOPIO 838 “IBUIEJUOD B)SEM DIXOJ0IK0 moj@A & Uy seaolb pue Buibexoed Jo asodsip ‘pajoalip J| '9
‘agn} ou)seb e el pass)siuiwpe aq isnw Brup snopiezey e i Aoewreyd AfIION 'S
‘sBnip snoplezey Ysnio 10 8109S 19ABN ‘b

‘Buibexoed s, pue Brup snopiezey e Buiipuey uaym aaolb ajqnop sAemly ‘¢
"spuey aleq Yum pajpuey aq Jou pinoys sbrup snopiezeH -z

“8sINU pasuadl| paules) HWOL e Aq paisjsiuiwpe aq jleys sbnip snoplezeH ‘|

:uonensiuiwpy Bnig snopiezeq

auipunil ondoiip JinosBy aulpnaopiz
11A0J0Ua | pealip EYSTENN Jinopouebiea
auidesnnaN aunwellp uxanaN ajeuolnonib ajexanawi|
Jinojoioueblep EYSTETN apdouip aulpuNuL
aplwiopiiey] plwojey piuoeyl aplwopliey L
auo0Ja)s0)sa)Ayla pansa] Wwiepolpuy ‘[ebolpuy 2U0I2)S0)S3 |
Zualiaeyq eAlsng EENTN JIAOJOUD |
3UIPNAOPIZ naonay Jeiboid snwijoloe |
gqewxiyu) apeodlway aunwedey snuHjoNS
uuiaedry 8lozelIA ‘[01egey ajozell) '|01egay ulinegly
SNWI(O4IS aunuedey EETE] auajixoley
o)eje0y auosa)sabosdAxoipain B1aA0Id winLUBwold auoJ9)saboid
apud)seul 120S01d GZ-uooopod uisal wnjAydopod
auoia)saboid winujawold adngepN ‘wejusd 9]BUOIY}OSI BuIplweuad
snwijosoe | Jesboid uloo)d UID0JAXO
ojuouoyo ‘uidosjopeuocs |Aubslg BUNWEBIIA auidesinaN
uisal wnjjAuydopod GZ-uooopod DIHOJAN 1d89|18D ajou aejousydodAp
UnoAxQ urd0ld pansa] 2au0I3)SO)SANAUIB N
9]2UO0IY)aS! aulplweluad juadngapN ‘wejuad ENGIENET auinouobiajAyiaN
1daoejeqy EENe) elanoid a)ele0y auoialsaboidAxoipay
ajedidosisg uabp eAely apiwoun|a]
ajeuoinon|b ajexasdwil] (ENGEY apesjway qewixiyu|
ul1odsoppAD aunwiipues ‘[el1oaN [Aubaig JlUoLIOYD ‘uidoljopeuos)
aulnouobiajAye N EEE ENEIGIG) JIAOjDIoUBS)
auudoiyiezy ueJnLuy 120S01d apusiseuty
auayxoey ejsiAg uebo ajedidossy
suoneuiquos upsaboid-usbolsy SH 1s9jelisg SH i1saiel)s3 suoneulquios unsaboid-uabonsy
jolpens3 joipeiis3-odaq ‘esew|) ‘aoeisg joipesis3-odaq ‘esewnj) ‘adelis3y joipens3y
JIAO[OI10UBD) BUBAOIAD BAIISNS Zualiinel3
auIya|0n auRIYdIoD Hepoay apuajseinqg
jooiuaydwelolyd upasAwoIoyD ullsold ‘|IpIaie) auojsoxdouig
auo)soidouiqg unsold ‘Ipie) aunwwipues ‘|e10aN uLodsojaA)
najow ayejousydosApy NS TIEGERER) auIdIY2|6) auRIYy2|0)
apualseng LEPOAY unasAwoioyd jod1uaydwelo|y)
aplwounya BABLY uesnuwj auudoiyiezy
23U0I8)S0)S8 1 wispolpuy ‘|aboipuy BIOUBIO jdaoejeqy

awepN ouauan sweN ape)| aweN apes| SWEN JUBUID

1817 3avyL 1517 D1HY3INID

SNOILVIIA3IN SNOAUVZVH
Y3LNID TvOIgaW ALID-IHL

¥ Jo ¢ abed
sbniq snoplezey

|ERLEN-SIRPE9SeIE SADIAIBS aJe)) Juaned



@‘9 Tri-City Medical Center
Oceanside, California

PATIENT CARE SERVICES

STANDARDIZED PROCEDURE: LOCAL ANESTHETIC PRIOR TO INTRAVENOUS INSERTIONS

I POLICY:
A. Function:
1. Administration of a local anesthetic for pain management during insertion of intravenous
(IV) lines.
B. Circumstances:
1. Setting: Patient Care areas

2. Population: Adult, Pediatrics and infant patients
3. Contraindications: Allergy to Lidesainelidocaine or prilocaine
4. Supervision: None required

I PROCEDURE:
A. Pre procedure
1. Criteria for use:
a. Deeper insertion
b. Patient anxiety due to IV insertion
c. Difficult insertion
d. Patient request

+:2. Assess for appropriate IV insertion site
2:3.  Explain rationale for use of topical anesthetic prior to [V insertion to
patient/parent/caregiver/significant other

B. Procedure
1. Topical Anesthetic Cream (lidocaine and/or prilocaineEMLA/ELA-MAX) Administration
a. Equipment: Tegaderm patch or tape

i. Alcohol or chlorhexidine wipe
ii. Topical Anesthetic Cream (EMLA/ELA-MAX)
b. Administration:
i. Swab insertion site with alcohol or chlorhexidine wipe
ii. Apply generous 1 inch square of topical anesthetic cream over insertion

site.
iii. Cover with Tegaderm or tape per manufacturer's instructions.
iv. Wait for minimum amount of time per manufacturer’s instructions.
C. Insert IV per policy
2. Intradermal Lidocaine Administration
a. Equipment:

i. TB syringe with appropriate 27 g needle attachment
i. Alcohol or chiorhexidine wipe
if. Lidocaine 1% without epinephrine
b. Administration:
i. Draw up 0.1 mL of Lidocaine in a syringe
il. Swab insertion site with alcohol or chlorhexidine wipe
iii. Inject Lidocaine intradermally to form a wheal at insertion site

iv. Wait at least 1 minute

V. Insert IV per Mosby’s Procedure Intravenous Therapy: Initiation peliey
3. Post procedure
a. Assess and monitor the following:
i. Erythema

Doniit t Clinical Nurse Medical Staff Pharmacy & Interdisciplinary Medical Professional Board of
ega qnen Policies & | Executive | Department or | Therapeutics Practice Executive Affairs Dioa;t o
ey Procedures | Committee Division Committee Committee Committee | Committee AL 0N

07/15 09/15 09/15 n/a 12415 07/16 09/16




Patient Care Services
Standardized Procedure: Local Anesthetic Prior to Intravenous Insertion
Page 2 of 2

ii. Swelling
ii. Potential allergic reaction
b. Educate patient/parent/caregiver/significant other on complications listed above
[ DOCUMENTATION:
A. Complete documentation in the Electronic Health Record (EHR)
B. Enter order for initiation of standardized procedure per policy.
C. Medications are documented in the Medication Administration Record (MAR).
D. Insertion procedure and patient response is documented in the IVIEW band.
Iv. RELATED DOCUMENTS:

PLV.

IRYAV/R

| VAVIL

B-A. Mosby’s Procedure Intravenous Therapy: Initiation

REQUIREMENTS FOR CLINICIANS PROVIDING INTERVENTIONS:
Current California RN license
Initial Evaluation: Orientation
Ongoing Evaluation: Ongoing

O oW

EVELOPMENT AND APPROVAL OF THE STANDARDIZED PROCEDURE:

Method: This Standardized Procedure was developed through collaboration with Nursing,
Medicine and Administration.

Review: Every 2 years or review procedure per Hospital policy.

CLINICIANS AUTHORIZED TO PERFORM THIS STANDARDIZED PROCEDURE:
All Registered Nurses who have successfully completed requirements as outlined above are
authorized to direct and perform Local Anesthetic Prior to Intravenous Insertions

Pl @ 2



@) Tri-City Medical Center | Tracked Changes Copy

Oceanside, California

| PATIENT CARE SERVICES POLICY-MANUAL

| ISSUE DATE: 6/02 SUBJECT: PatientOwned/Supplied-Medical
Equipment Brought into the Facility
REVISION DATE: 7/05, 7/07, 3/10, 6/12 POLICY NUMBER: XI.E
Department Approval Date(s): 02/16
Clinical Policies & Procedures Committee Approval:  06/1208/16
Nurse Executive Committee Approval: 09/16
Pharmacy & Therapeutics Committee Approval: 09/16
Medical Executive Committee Approval: 09/16
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: 08/12
Board of Directors Approval: 08/12
A POLICY:
1. To provide guidelines for patient owned/supplied equipment that is brought into the center.

B. DEFINITION:
1. Patient-Supplied Equipment (PSE) relates to medical equipment supplied by the patient or
l family that is brought into the hospital for use during the patient’s stay- (examples may include:
patient owned medical equipment, medical equipment that is being rented loaned/leased, loaner
equipment from other hospitals, doctor owned, or vendor supplied equipment for use by the
patient, etc.)

B.C. POLICYPROCEDURE

s

.

——————
an a

Tri-City Healthcare Districf’s (TCHD)F¥EMC's standard of care is to use
hospital-owned equipment whenever possible i

a. Patients with continuous home parenteral therapy should not have therapy interrupted
until pharmacy services can assess, provide, and continue the medication safely.

b. Prohibited PSE (Prohibited List): The following types of PSE are NOT allowed to be
used in the hospital under any circumstances (the examples are illustrative only and are
not all inclusive):

i. Equipment that is not approved by the Food and Drug Administration for
sale/distribution or use under the Investigation Device Exemption (IDE)
regulation within the United States;

H Ill;gln ”SEIE egqilul'p”n;ent &8



Patient Care Services Policy Manual
| Medical Equipment Brought into the Facility Equipment—XLC-

Page 2 of 5
.
2) i .ut_emated Exiernal Ee“b'.'”ate' tAED)
3) Batient GB.HEI elled. analgesia-tPCA}-pumps
5'? ,E:nesthelsplai ||l|'aeI.u||es
4-c. Any equipment that does not meet the electrical safety standards required for medical
equipment or use in the hospitals.
| e-d. Even if the device is mechanically and electrically sound, there may still be reasons to
prohibit its use. These reasons may include, but are not limited to the following:
| i. If the equipment requires audible alarms that cannot be provided;
ii. If the equipment has alarms that can be defeated without clinical staff
| intervention:
iii. If the patient should become incapacitated or is otherwise unable to maintain
[ their, equipment the hospital may provide substitute equipment:
iv. Any reason that TCMC deems reasonable that may place the patient’s safety at
risk=
2. Upon the patient’s request to use PSE, the nurse caring for the patient should explain to the
patient that TCHD’s standard of care is to use hospital owned equipment whenever
possible.

a. If patient is agreeable to the use of hospital equipment, change the PSE to
hospital equipment and send PSE home with family member (if family member
available)

2:b. If the patient refuses hospital equipment and requests use of PSE the patient’s

physician and clinical staff will determine whether the equipment is medically appropriate
for the patient’s condition. The patient or family members must have the capacity,
adequate training, and experience, to operate the equipment safely.

3. If the equnpment is deemed medlcally approprlate- arddbesliniealsiafdeams

4.3. Priorto allowmg patlents to utlhze thelr own eqmpment a nurse/deSIgnee in the cI|n|caI

department where the patlent is being treated, will verify/complete-the-followingforpatient

a. Verify Aa physman s order has been obtained and entered in Cerner approving the
use of the patient’s equipment.
b. EnsureRrior-to-use-of the- PSE while-in-thefacility, the patient or legal representative
mustsigns a liability waiver (See Patient-Supplied Equipment Waiver) for use of PSE.
i. The signed waiver shall be placed in the patient's chart.
adi. If the waiver is declined, or if the device does not meet clinical or electrical safety
standards, the equipment will not be allowed to be used in the hospital.
| b-c. Glinicalnursingstaff-has-completed-avVisually inspection the PSE (assessing for
damage to the device, infestation with insects, excessively soiled.)
| e-d. The-exterior-shall-be-thoroughly-wWiped down the PSE with germicidal disinfectant
(example: Sani-Wipe), being careful around any electrical portions. If there are any
concerns related to infection control, the Infection Preventionist shall be contacted at
Eextension- 7410 or 5696-306+.

d-e. Notify Bio-Med shall-be-netified-as soon as possible that a PSE device has been
brought into the facility and the required inspection and safety checks must be
completed. The safety check must be completed within 24 hours of the device being

| brought into the facility (Monday-Friday).




Patient Care Services Policy Manual
| Medical Equipment Brought into the Facility Equipment—XLC:

Page 3of 5

i. If the device is brought in during the weekend, then-the nurse should complete a
thorough visual inspection for any frayed wires and plug, and Bio-Med shall be
notified first thing Monday morning that a safety inspection is needed.

ii. The exception to this rule is any use of life-support devices such as a ventilator,
which must be inspected by Bio-Med prior to any use within the medical center,
(Off hours and weekends contact the Administration Supervisor to notify Bio-

Med).
ef. Bio-Med shall label the device as Non-Hospital Owned Equipment with the date of their
inspection.
£g. If the medical device does not have alarms and failure of the device could lead to

potential harm to the patient, then the clinical staff members must use adequate
oversight or alternate means to monitor the patient’s well being ( example: pulse
oximeter).

g-h.

Nete:For Aany concerns or questions, please contact:

h-a. The Director of Risk Management for risk issues

kb.  The Chief Nurse Executive for patient care issues

}c. The Management of Clinical Engineering for medical equipment issues.

E-D. SPECIAL CONSIDERATIONS:

1.

Insulin Pumps:

a. See Patient Care Services (PCS) Policy: Self-Administered Continuous
Subcutaneous Infusion of Insulin (Insulin Pump Therapy) for the Acute Care
Patient

Wearable Defibrillator:

a. See PCS Policy: Wearable Defibrillator (LifeVest)

Implantable Pain Pumps:

a. The admitting physician will be notified immediately -the patient has an
implantable pain pump.

2:b. The admitting physician will attempt to contact the original prescribing physician
of the pain pump for information on continuing, stopping or disconnecting.

c. The admitting physician will enter orders regarding the status of the pain pump.

i. If the medication will continue during hospitalization, the medication that is
being infused by the pain pump must be entered into the electronic health
record.

1) This will include the drug, dose, total volume, rate and volume
infused.

2) The order must specify that the drug is infusing through pain pump.

13) The nurses will document on the electronic medication record

(eMAR) daily.
Ambulatory Infusion Pump (AIP):
a. The admitting physician will be notified immediately that the patient is wearing an
AlIP.
b. Admitting physician will attempt to contact the original prescribing physician of

the AIP for information on continuing, stopping or disconnecting.

i. Admitting physician may also call the number located on the AIP for other
information.

ii. If the medication is a chemotherapeutic agent, the medication must be
administered/discontinued by TCHD Chemotherapy Competent Registered
Nurse (see PCS Procedure: Chemotherapy Administration).

c. The admitting physician will enter orders regarding the status of the AIP

i. If the medication will continue during hospitalization, the medication that is

being infused by the AIP must be entered into the electronic health record.



Patient Care Services Policy Manual
| Medical Equipment Brought into the Facility Equipment—X-C-

Page 4 of 5
231)  This will include the drug, dose, total volume, rate and volume
infused.
2) The order must specify that the drug is infusing through AIP.
b-3) If the AIP is continued, nurses will document on the eMAR daily.
FE. FORMS-LOCATED OGN INTRANET:

1. Patient-Supplied Equipment Waiver Sample

RELATED DOCUMENTS

1. Outpatient Infusion Center Procedure: Ambulatory Infusion Pumps

2, PCS Policy: Self-Administered Continuous Subcutaneous Infusion of Insulin (Insulin
Pump Therapy) for the Acute Care Patient

4-3. PCS Policy: Wearable Defibrillator (LifeVest)

4, PCS Procedure: Chemotherapy Administration



Patient Care Services Palicy Manual

Medical Equipment Brought into the Facility Equipment—XLG:
Page 50of 5

PATIENT SUPPLIED EQUIPMENT WAIVER SAMPLE

This Patient Supplied Equipment Waiver between Tri-City Healthcare District (Tri-City) and
(Patient) is entered into on , 20__. Patient or legal representative must initial each statement in order
to use Patient Supplied Equipment in Tri-City Healthcare District facility.

Type of Device used: (Do not use for Insulin Pump, refer to Insulin
Pump Policy)

| understand that | have voluntarily brought my equipment into a Tri-City facility for my use during my stay at a Tri-
City facility.

| certify that | have been trained on how to use and repair this equipment, and that | am fully capable of using and
repairing the equipment.

{ understand that Tri-City performed an inspection of my equipment. This inspection is not a warranty that the
device is safe or free from defects. | am not relying on Tri-City's inspection of the equipment to ensure its safety or my
proper use.

I understand that Tri-City may unilaterally determine without warning to me that | may no longer use my equipment.
Tri-City may replace my equipment with its own equipment.

I understand that by signing this document, | hereby waive any claim or right of action against Tri-City related to my
use of my equipment. | release Tri-City and its employees, agents, and assigns from any and all liability resulting from the
use, operation, damage to, and repair of my equipment by myself, Tri-City, and any of its employees.

By agreeing to the above terms and conditions, | expressly assume the risks that may result from bringing personal
medical equipment into a Tri-City facility. | release Tri-City from any damages, and agree to indemnify, hold harmless, and
defend Tri-City, its employees, affiliates, directors, officers, subsidiaries, and agents against any and all liability arising out
of the negligent operation of use of the medical equipment by me or my family or visitors. | acknowledge and agree that in
no event shall Tri-City be liable for any indirect, special, consequential, incidental, or punitive damages, loss, or expense
associated with the use of personal medical equipment by me or my family and/or visitors. This agreement shall be legally
binding on me and my designated family member(s) and/or visitors operating my personal medical equipment. My
signature below indicates | have read this agreement, understand it, and agree to be bound by its terms.

Patient or Legal Surrogate Date

Witness Date



Tri-City Medical Center Clean Copy

Oceanside, California

PATIENT CARE SERVICES

B. DEFINITION:

1.

C. POLICY:
1.

a.

b.

C.

d.
2.

ISSUE DATE: 6/02 SUBJECT: Medical Equipment Brought into the
Facility
REVISION DATE: 7/05, 7/07, 3/10, 6/12 POLICY NUMBER: XILE
Department Approval Date(s): 02/16
Clinical Policies & Procedures Committee Approval: 08/16
Nurse Executive Committee Approval: 09/16
Pharmacy & Therapeutics Committee Approval: 09/16
Medical Executive Committee Approval: 09/16
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: 08/12
Board of Directors Approval: 08/12
A POLICY:
1. To provide guidelines for patient owned/supplied equipment that is brought into the center.

Patient-Supplied Equipment (PSE) relates to medical equipment supplied by the patient or
family that is brought into the hospital for use during the patient's stay (examples may include:
patient owned medical equipment, medical equipment that is being rented loaned/leased, loaner
equipment from other hospitals, doctor owned, or vendor supplied equipment for use by the
patient, etc.)

Tri-City Healthcare District's (TCHD) standard of care is to use hospital-owned equipment
whenever possible.

Patients with continuous home parenteral therapy should not have therapy interrupted
until pharmacy services can assess, provide, and continue the medication safely.
Prohibited PSE (Prohibited List): The following types of PSE are NOT allowed to be
used in the hospital under any circumstances (the examples are illustrative only and are
not all inclusive):

i. Equipment that is not approved by the Food and Drug Administration for
sale/distribution or use under the Investigation Device Exemption (IDE)
regulation within the United States;

Any equipment that does not meet the electrical safety standards required for medical

equipment or use in the hospitals.

Even if the device is mechanically and electrically sound, there may still be reasons to

prohibit its use. These reasons may include, but are not limited to the following:

i. If the equipment requires audible alarms that cannot be provided

i. If the equipment has alarms that can be defeated without clinical staff
intervention

iii. If the patient should become incapacitated or is otherwise unable to maintain
their, equipment the hospital may provide substitute equipment

iv. Any reason that TCMC deems reasonable that may place the patient’s safety at
risk

Upon the patient’s request to use PSE, the nurse caring for the patient should explain to the
patient that TCHD’s standard of care is to use hospital owned equipment whenever possible.



Patient Care Services Policy Manual
Medical Equipment Brought into the Facility

Page 2 of 4

a. If patient is agreeable to the use of hospital equipment, change the PSE to hospital
equipment and send PSE home with family member (if family member available)

b. If the patient refuses hospital equipment and requests use of PSE the patient’s physician
and clinical staff will determine whether the equipment is medically appropriate for the
patient’s condition. The patient or family members must have the capacity, adequate
training, and experience, to operate the equipment safely.

i, If the equipment is deemed medically appropriate the physician will authorize use
with an order.

3. Prior to allowing patients to utilize their own equipment, a nurse/designee in the clinical
department where the patient is being treated, will :

a. Verify a physician’s order has been obtained and entered in Cerner approving the use of
the patient’s equipment.

b. Ensure the patient or legal representative signs a liability waiver (See Patient-Supplied
Equipment Waiver) for use of PSE.

i. The signed waiver shall be placed in the patient’s chart.

i. If the waiver is declined, or if the device does not meet clinical or electrical safety
standards, the equipment will not be allowed to be used in the hospital.

C. Visually inspect the PSE (assessing for damage to the device, infestation with insects,
excessively soiled.)

d. Wipe down the PSE with germicidal disinfectant (example: Sani-Wipe), being careful
around any electrical portions. If there are any concerns related to infection control, the
Infection Preventionist shall be contacted at extension 7410 or 5696.

e. Notify Bio-Med as soon as possible that a PSE device has been brought into the facility
and the required inspection and safety checks must be completed. The safety check
must be completed within 24 hours of the device being brought into the facility (Monday-
Friday).

i. If the device is brought in during the weekend, the nurse should complete a
thorough visual inspection for any frayed wires and plug, and Bio-Med shall be
notified first thing Monday morning that a safety inspection is needed.

ii. The exception to this rule is any use of life-support devices such as a ventilator,
which must be inspected by Bio-Med prior to any use within the medical center,
(Off hours and weekends contact the Administration Supervisor to notify Bio-
Med).

f. Bio-Med shall label the device as Non-Hospital Owned Equipment with the date of their
inspection.

g. If the medical device does not have alarms and failure of the device could lead to
potential harm to the patient, then the clinical staff members must use adequate
oversight or alternate means to monitor the patient’s well being ( example: pulse
oximeter).

h.

4, For any concerns or questions, please contact:

a. The Director of Risk Management for risk issues

b. The Chief Nurse Executive for patient care issues

C. The Management of Clinical Engineering for medical equipment issues.

D. SPECIAL CONSIDERATIONS:
1. Insulin Pumps:
a. See Patient Care Services (PCS) Policy: Self-Administered Continuous Subcutaneous
Infusion of Insulin (Insulin Pump Therapy) for the Acute Care Patient
2, Wearable Defibrillator:
a. See PCS Policy: Wearable Defibrillator (LifeVest)
3. Implantable Pain Pumps:

-



Patient Care Services Policy Manual
Medical Equipment Brought into the Facility

Page 3 of 4

4.

E. FORMS:
1.

The admitting physician will be notified immediately the patient has an implantable pain

pump.

The admitting physician will attempt to contact the original prescribing physician of the

pain pump for information on continuing, stopping or disconnecting.

The admitting physician will enter orders regarding the status of the pain pump.

i If the medication will continue during hospitalization, the medication that is being
infused by the pain pump must be entered into the electronic health record.

1) This will include the drug, dose, total volume, rate and volume infused.

2) The order must specify that the drug is infusing through pain pump.

3) The nurses will document on the electronic medication record (eMAR)
daily.

Ambulatory Infusion Pump (AIP):

a.
b.

The admitting physician will be notified immediately that the patient is wearing an AlP.

Admitting physician will attempt to contact the original prescribing physician of the AlP

for information on continuing, stopping or disconnecting.

i. Admitting physician may also call the number located on the AlP for other
information.

ii. If the medication is a chemotherapeutic agent, the medication must be
administered/discontinued by TCHD Chemotherapy Competent Registered
Nurse (see PCS Procedure: Chemotherapy Administration).

The admitting physician will enter orders regarding the status of the AIP

i If the medication will continue during hospitalization, the medication that is being
infused by the AIP must be entered into the electronic health record.

1) This will include the drug, dose, total volume, rate and volume infused.
2) The order must specify that the drug is infusing through AIP.
3) If the AIP is continued, nurses will document on the eMAR daily.

Patient-Supplied Equipment Waiver Sample

F. RELATED DOCUMENTS

Outpatient Infusion Center Procedure: Ambulatory Infusion Pumps

PCS Policy: Self-Administered Continuous Subcutaneous Infusion of Insulin (Insulin Pump
Therapy) for the Acute Care Patient

PCS Policy: Wearable Defibrillator (LifeVest)

PCS Procedure: Chemotherapy Administration

1.
2.

3.
4.




